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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
  
NOTICE is hereby given that the 56th Annual General Meeting (AGM) of the Members of M/s 
BANGALORE FORT FARMS LIMITED (“BFFL”), will be held on Saturday, 30th September, 2023 at 
02.30 P.M. (“IST”) at the registered office of the company at 16A, Brabourne Road, 6th Floor, Kolkata 
– 700001 and through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio-Visual Means (“OVAM”) to transact 
the following business:  
 
ORDINARY BUSINESS 

 
1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023, the Profit and 

Loss Account for the year ended on that date and the Reports of the Directors and Auditors 
thereon. 
 

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Mahendra Singh (DIN 0769234) who retires by rotation 
and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 

 

3. Appointment of M/s Amit Ray & Co., Chartered Accountants (having Firm Registration 
Number: 116886W), as statutory auditors of the company in place of M/s AMK & Associates, 
Chartered Accountants (having Firm Registration Number: 000483C). 

 

To consider and if thought fit, to pass following resolution as Ordinary Resolution: 
 
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 read with The Companies [Audit and 
Auditors] Rules, 2014 and other applicable provisions [including any modification or re-enactment 
thereof] if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, M/s AMIT RAY & CO., CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS 
(HAVING FIRM REGISTRATION NUMBER: 000483C), KOLKATA AS STATUTORY AUDITORS OF THE 
COMPANY IN PLACE OF M/s AMK & ASSOCIATES, CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS (FRN: 0327817E) 
pursuant to completion of their term as Statutory Auditors of the Company.  
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT M/s AMIT RAY & CO., CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS (HAVING FIRM 
REGISTRATION NUMBER: 000483C), KOLKATA to hold the office for the term of five years beginning 
from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of the 61st Annual General 
Meeting for FY 2027-2028 of the Company on such terms and remuneration as may be mutually 
agreed upon between the said Auditors and Board of Directors of the Company”. 
 
SPECIAL BUSINESS 
 
4.  Regularization of Appointment and Remuneration of Mr. Sundeep Kumar Tayal (DIN 10196518) as 

Whole-time Director as per Companies Act, 2013.  
 
To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modifications, the following resolution as 
Special Resolution: 
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“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Sundeep Kumar Tayal (DIN 10196518) who was appointed as an additional and 
independent director, pursuant to Section 149, 152 and 161 and other relevant provisions of the 
Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made there under (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), Articles of Association of Company, approvals 
and recommendations of nomination and remuneration committee, and that of the Board, be and is 
hereby appointed as an Independent Director, not liable to retire by rotation, for a period upto 
30/03/2028.” 
 
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to delegate all or any of the 
powers to any committee of Directors with power to further delegate to any other 
officer(s)/authorized representative(s) of the Company to do all acts, deeds and things and take all 
such steps as may be necessary, proper or expedient to give effect to this resolution.” 
 
5. Change in designation of Mrs. Mousumi Sengupta (DIN: 07825625) to Non-Executive-Non-

Independent-Women Director. 
 
To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolution as 
Special Resolution: 
 
"RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, and the Articles of 
Association of the Company, Mrs. Mousumi Sengupta, (DIN: 07825625) who is currently serving as 
an Independent Women Director on the Board of Directors of the Company, be and is hereby 
appointed as a Non-Executive-Non-Independent-Women Director of the Company with effect from 
this Annual General Meeting." 
 
"RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the necessary steps be taken by the Board of Directors and the 
Company Secretary to give effect to this resolution, including making the required filings and 
updates with the relevant authorities." 
 

 
By order of the Board of Directors 
For Bangalore Fort Farms Limited 

  Sd/- 
                                       Mahendra Singh 

Managing Director 
DIN: 07692374 

                  Place: Kolkata 
Date: 08-09-2023                        
           
Regd. Office:  
16A, Brabourne Road 6th Floor,  
Kolkata – 700 001 
CIN: L51101WB1966PLC226442 
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Notes:- 
  
1. An Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in 

respect of the special business is annexed hereto. 
  
2. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT ONE 

OR MORE PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE (ONLY ON POLL) INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE 
PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. THE DULY COMPLETED AND SIGNED 
PROXY FORM SHOULD REACH THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE COMPANY, NOT LESS THAN 
FORTY EIGHT HOURS BEFORE THE SCHEDULED TIME OF THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING. 
 
A PERSON CAN ACT AS A PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING FIFTY AND 
HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL 
OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS. A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN TEN PERCENT 
OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY APPOINT A 
SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY FOR ANY OTHER PERSON OR SHAREHOLDER. 

 

3. Members who have not registered their e-mail addresses so far are requested to register 
their e-mail ID with RTA of the Company / Depository Participant(s) for receiving all 
communication including Annual Report, Notices, Circulars etc. from the Company 
electronically. 

 
4. Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of 
SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), and the 
Circulars issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company is providing facility of 
remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at the AGM. For 
this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities Depository 
Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized agency. The 
facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting system will be provided by NSDL. 

 
5. The Notice calling the AGM has been uploaded on the website of the Company at 

www.bangalorefortfarms.com. The Notice can also be accessed from the websites of the Stock 
Exchanges i.e. BSE Limited at www.bseindia.com and the AGM Notice is also available on the 
website of NSDL (agency for providing the Remote e-Voting facility) i.e. www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
 

6. Mrs. Nitu Singh, Company Secretaries, Kolkata (Membership No. FCS 12157, C.P.No. 24204), has 
been appointed as the Scrutinizer for providing facility to the members of the Company, to 
scrutinize the voting and remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent manner. 

 

7. Members are required to bring their attendance slip along-with copy of the Notice at the AGM. 
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8. In case of joint holders attending the Meeting, only such joint holder who is higher in the order 
of names will be entitled to vote at the Meeting. 

 

9. Relevant documents referred to in the accompanying Notice are open for inspection by the 
Members at the Company’s Registered Office on all working days of the Company, during 
business hours up to the date of the Meeting. 

 
THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR MEMBERS FOR REMOTE E-VOTING ARE AS UNDER:- 

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and Regulation 44 of SEBI 

(Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015 (as amended), the Company is 

providing facility of remote e-Voting to its Members in respect of the business to be transacted at 

the AGM. For this purpose, the Company has entered into an agreement with National Securities 

Depository Limited (NSDL) for facilitating voting through electronic means, as the authorized 

agency. The facility of casting votes by a member using remote e-Voting system of the AGM will be 

provided by NSDL and voting through ballot paper will be provided at the AGM venue. 

The remote e-voting period begins on 27-09-2023 at 09:00 A.M. and ends on 29-09-2023 at 05:00 

P.M. The remote e-voting module shall be disabled by NSDL for voting thereafter. The Members, 

whose names appear in the Register of Members / Beneficial Owners as on the record date (cut-

off date) i.e. 23-09-2023, may cast their vote electronically. The voting right of shareholders shall 

be in proportion to their share in the paid-up equity share capital of the Company as on the cut-off 

date, being 23-09-2023. 

How do I vote electronically using NSDL e-Voting system? 

The way to vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system consists of “Two Steps” which are 

mentioned below: 

Step 1: Access to NSDL e-Voting system 

A) Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode In 

terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 

Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote 

through their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. 

Shareholders are advised to update their mobile number and email Id in their demat 

accounts in order to access e-Voting facility. 
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Login method for Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode is given below: 

Type of shareholders  Login Method 

Individual 

Shareholders holding 

securities in demat 

mode with NSDL. 

1. Existing IDeAS user can visit the e-Services website of NSDL Viz. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a Personal Computer or on a 

mobile. On the e-Services home page click on the “Beneficial 

Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’section , 

this will prompt you to enter your existing User ID and Password. 

After successful authentication, you will be able to see e-Voting 

services under Value added services. Click on “Access to e-Voting” 

under e-Voting services and you will be able to see e-Voting page. 

Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and 

you will be re-directed to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting 

your vote during the remote e-Voting period If you are not 

registered for IDeAS e-Services, option to register is available at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com.  Select “Register Online for IDeAS 

Portal” or click at 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp . 

 

2. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the 

following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal 

Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of e-Voting system 

is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is available under 

‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will 

have to enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account 

number hold with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification Code as 

shown on the screen. After successful authentication, you will be 

redirected to NSDL Depository site wherein you can see e-Voting 

page. Click on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. 

NSDL and you will be redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for 

casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period. 

 

3. Shareholders/Members can also download NSDL Mobile App 

“NSDL Speede” facility by scanning the QR code mentioned below 

for seamless voting experience. 

https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
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Individual 

Shareholders holding 

securities in demat 

mode with CDSL 

1. Existing users who have opted for Easi / Easiest, they can login 

through their user id and password. Option will be made available to 

reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. The URL for 

users to login to Easi / Easiest are 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login or www.cdslindia.com 

and click on New System Myeasi. 

2. After successful login of Easi/Easiest the user will be also able to 

see the E Voting Menu. The Menu will have links of e-Voting service 

provider i.e. NSDL. Click on NSDL to cast your vote. 

3. If the user is not  registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is 

available at 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration 

4. Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by 

providing demat Account Number and PAN No. from a link in 

www.cdslindia.com home page. The system will authenticate the 

user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in 

the demat Account. After successful authentication, user will be 

provided links for the respective ESP i.e. NSDL where the e-Voting 

is in progress. 

Individual 

Shareholders 

(holding securities in 

demat mode) login 

through their 

depository 

participants 

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account 

through your Depository Participant registered with NSDL/CDSL for e-

Voting facility. upon logging in, you will be able to see e-Voting option. Click 

on e-Voting option, you will be redirected to NSDL/CDSL Depository site 

after successful authentication, wherein you can see e-Voting feature. Click 

on company name or e-Voting service provider i.e. NSDL and you will be 

redirected to e-Voting website of NSDL for casting your vote during the 

remote e-Voting period  

 

https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/home/login
http://www.cdslindia.com/
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeasi/Registration/EasiRegistration
http://www.cdslindia.com/
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Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID/ Password are advised to use Forget 

User ID and Forget Password option available at abovementioned website. 

 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues 

related to login through Depository i.e. NSDL and CDSL. 

Login type Helpdesk details 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with NSDL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

NSDL helpdesk by sending a request at  evoting@nsdl.co.in 

or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 

Individual Shareholders holding 

securities in demat mode with CDSL 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact 

CDSL helpdesk by sending a request at 

helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at 022- 23058738 

or 022-23058542-43 

 
B) Login Method for e-Voting for shareholders other than Individual shareholders holding securities 
in demat mode and shareholders holding securities in physical mode. 
 
How to Log-in to NSDL e-Voting website? 
 

1. Visit the e-Voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: 
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ either on a Personal Computer or on a mobile.  

2. Once the home page of e-Voting system is launched, click on the icon “Login” which is 
available under ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. 

3. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID, your Password/OTP and a 
Verification Code as shown on the screen. 
Alternatively, if you are registered for NSDL eservices i.e. IDEAS, you can log-in at 
https://eservices.nsdl.com/ with your existing IDEAS login. Once you log-in to NSDL 
eservices after using your log-in credentials, click on e-Voting and you can proceed to Step 
2 i.e. Cast your vote electronically. 

4. Your User ID details are given below : 
 

Manner of holding shares i.e. Demat 

(NSDL or CDSL) or Physical 

 Your User ID is: 

a) For Members who hold shares in 

Demat account with NSDL. 

8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digit Client ID 

For example if your DP ID is IN300*** and Client 

ID is 12****** then your user ID is 

mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
https://eservices.nsdl.com/
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IN300***12******. 

b) For Members who hold shares in 

Demat account with CDSL. 

16 Digit Beneficiary ID 

For example if your Beneficiary ID is 

12************** then your user ID is 

12************** 

c) For Members holding shares in 

Physical Form. 

EVEN Number followed by Folio Number 

registered with the company 

For example if folio number is 001*** and EVEN is 

101456 then user ID is 101456001*** 

 

 
5. Password details for shareholders other than Individual shareholders are given below:  

a) If you are already registered for e-Voting, then you can user your existing password to 
login and cast your vote. 

b) If you are using NSDL e-Voting system for the first time, you will need to retrieve the 
‘initial password’ which was communicated to you. Once you retrieve your ‘initial 
password’, you need to enter the ‘initial password’ and the system will force you to 
change your password. 

c) How to retrieve your ‘initial password’? 
(i) If your email ID is registered in your Demat account or with the company, your 

‘initial password’ is communicated to you on your email ID. Trace the email sent 
to you from NSDL from your mailbox. Open the email and open the attachment 
i.e. a .pdf file. Open the .pdf file. The password to open the .pdf file is your 8 digit 
client ID for NSDL account, last 8 digits of client ID for CDSL account or folio 
number for shares held in physical form. The .pdf file contains your ‘User ID’ 
and your ‘initial password’.  

(ii) If your email ID is not registered, please follow steps mentioned below in 
process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered. 

 
6.  If you are unable to retrieve or have not received the “Initial password” or have forgotten 

your password: 
a) Click on “Forgot User Details/Password?”(If you are holding shares in your Demat 

account with NSDL or CDSL) option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
b) Physical User Reset Password?” (If you are holding shares in physical mode) option 

available on www.evoting.nsdl.com. 
c) If you are still unable to get the password by aforesaid two options, you can send a 

request at evoting@nsdl.co.in mentioning your Demat account number/folio number, 
your PAN, your name and your registered address etc. 

d) Members can also use the OTP (One Time Password) based login for casting the votes on 
the e-Voting system of NSDL. 

https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in


 
BANGALORE FORT FARMS LIMITED 

Regd, Office: 16A, Brabourne Road, 6th Floor,  

Kolkata – 700001 

  Email: info@bangalorefortfarms.com 

Telephone: (+91) 9073933003, (+91) 9073933004 

CIN: L51101WB1966PLC226442 

 

 
 

 
7. After entering your password, tick on Agree to “Terms and Conditions” by selecting on the 

check box. 
8. Now, you will have to click on “Login” button. 
9. After you click on the “Login” button, Home page of e-Voting will open. 

 
Step 2: Cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system. 

How to cast your vote electronically on NSDL e-Voting system? 

1. After successful login at Step 1, you will be able to see all the companies “EVEN” in which 

you are holding shares and whose voting cycle is in active status. 

2. Select “EVEN” of company for which you wish to cast your vote during the remote e-Voting 

period. 

3. Now you are ready for e-Voting as the Voting page opens. 

4. Cast your vote by selecting appropriate options i.e. assent or dissent, verify/modify the 

number of shares for which you wish to cast your vote and click on “Submit” and also 

“Confirm” when prompted. 

5. Upon confirmation, the message “Vote cast successfully” will be displayed.  

6. You can also take the printout of the votes cast by you by clicking on the print option on the 

confirmation page. 

7. Once you confirm your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote. 

 

General Guidelines for shareholders 

1. Institutional shareholders (i.e. other than individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) are required to send 

scanned copy (PDF/JPG Format) of the relevant Board Resolution/ Authority letter etc. with 

attested specimen signature of the duly authorized signatory(ies) who are authorized to 

vote, to the Scrutinizer by e-mail to info@bangalorefortfarms.com with a copy marked to 

evoting@nsdl.co.in. 

2. It is strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take 

utmost care to keep your password confidential. Login to the e-voting website will be 

disabled upon five unsuccessful attempts to key in the correct password. In such an event, 

you will need to go through the “Forgot User Details/Password?” or “Physical User Reset 

Password?” option available on www.evoting.nsdl.com to reset the password.  

mailto:info@bangalorefortfarms.com
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/NewUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/eVotingWeb/commonhtmls/PhysicalUser.jsp
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3. In case of any queries, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions (FAQs) for 

Shareholders and e-voting user manual for Shareholders available at the download section 

of www.evoting.nsdl.com or call on toll free no.: 1800 1020 990  and  1800 22 44 30  or send 

a request to Sarita Mote at evoting@nsdl.co.in 

Process for those shareholders whose email ids are not registered with the depositories/company 

for procuring user id and password and registration of e mail ids for e-voting for the resolutions 

set out in this notice: 

1. In case shares are held in physical mode please provide Folio No., Name of shareholder, 
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self attested scanned copy of 
PAN card), AADHAR (self attested scanned copy of Aadhar Card) by email to 
info@bangalorefortfarms.com.  
 

2. In case shares are held in Demat mode, please provide DPID-CLID (16 digit DPID + CLID or 
16 digit beneficiary ID), Name, client master or copy of Consolidated Account statement, 
PAN (self attested scanned copy of PAN card), AADHAR (self-attested scanned copy of 
Aadhar Card) to info@bangalorefortfarms.com. If you are an Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode, you are requested to refer to the login method 
explained at step 1 (A) i.e. Login method for e-Voting for Individual shareholders holding 
securities in demat mode. 
 

3. Alternatively, shareholder/members may send a request to evoting@nsdl.co.in for 
procuring user id and password for e-voting by providing above mentioned documents. 

 

In terms of SEBI circular dated December 9, 2020 on e-Voting facility provided by Listed 

Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through 

their demat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants. Shareholders are 

required to update their mobile number and email ID correctly in their demat account in order to 

access e-Voting facility. 

By order of the Board of Directors 

For Bangalore Fort Farms Limited 

  Sd/- 
                                       Mahendra Singh 

Managing Director 
DIN: 07692374 

                  Place: Kolkata 
Date: 07-09-2023                        
Regd. Office:  
16A, Brabourne Road 6th Floor,  
Kolkata – 700 001 
CIN: L51101WB1966PLC226442 

http://www.evoting.nsdl.com/
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
mailto:evoting@nsdl.co.in
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 
 
Item No. 4:  
 
Mr. Sundeep Kumar Tayal (DIN - 10196518) was appointed as Additional Non-Executive Independent 
Directors w.e.f. 16th August, 2023 respectively in accordance with the provisions of Section 161 of 
the Companies Act, 2013. Pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Act, 2013 he shall hold office up 
to the date of the ensuing Annual General Meeting. Nomination and Remuneration Committee has 
recommended regularization of Mr. Sundeep Kumar Tayal (DIN - 10196518) as Independent Non-
Executive Director of the Company in accordance with the provisions of Section 160 and all other 
applicable provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. 
 
Section 149 and Section 152 inter alia specifies that: 
 
(a) Independent Directors shall hold office for a term of upto five consecutive years, and shall be 
eligible for re-appointment for a further period of five years, subject to passing of Special 
Resolution by the Shareholders in General Meeting; and (b) An Independent Director shall not be 
liable to retire by rotation at the AGM. 
 
He has furnished their declaration of independence under Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013. 
The Board accordingly recommends the Resolutions for the approval of the Members as Ordinary 
Resolution. 
 
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives other than 
Mr. Sundeep Kumar Tayal (DIN - 10196518) is in any way concerned or interested, in the above 
resolution. 
 
Item No. 5:  
 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, we provide the 
following explanatory statement for the proposed resolution pertaining to the change in 
designation of Mrs. Mousumi Sengupta from Independent Non-Executive Director to Non-
Executive-Non-Independent-Women Director of the Company, with effect from this Annual General 
Meeting: 
 
Mrs. Mousumi Sengupta, a distinguished and experienced member of the Board of Directors, 
currently serves as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company. In order to enhance 
gender diversity on the Board and in compliance with the applicable regulatory provisions, the 
Board proposes to re-designate Mrs. Mousumi Sengupta as a Non-Executive-Non-Independent-
Women Director. 
 
None of the Directors or Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their relatives other than 
Mrs. Mousumi Sengupta (DIN - 07825625) is in any way concerned or interested, in the above 
resolution. 
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ANNEXURE TO ITEM No. 2, 4 and 5 
 
Details of Directors seeking appointment at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting 
 

Name of the Director Mr. Mahendra 
Singh 

Mr. Sundip 
Kumar Tayal 

Mrs. Mousumi 
Sengupta 

Director Identification Number 
(DIN) 

07692374 10196518 07825625 

Date of Birth 23/03/1969 06/06/1978 03/04/1966 
Nationality Indian Indian Indian 

Date of Appointment on Board 11/08/2018 16/08/2023 25/06/2022 
Qualification MSc.(Botany) & 

DIM (IGNOU) 
B.Com & FCA B.Com 

Shareholding in the Company NIL NIL NIL 
List of Directorships held in 
other Companies (excluding 

foreign, and Section 8 
Companies) 

 
- Ros Advisory       
Private Limited 

 

 

NIL 

 

NIL 

Memberships / Chairmanships 
of Audit and Stakeholders’ 
Relationship Committees 

across other Public Companies 

 
 
 
 

NIL 

 
 
 
 

NIL 

 
 
 
 

NIL 
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ROUTE MAP FOR THE VENUE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 
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ATTENDANCE SLIP 
 

Please complete this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the hall 
 
I, hereby record my attendance at the Annual General Meeting of the members of Bangalore Fort 
Farms Limited will be held on 30-09-2023, at 02.30 P.M. at 16A, Brabourne Road, 6th Floor, Kolkata 
– 700001 and through Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio-Visual Means (“OVAM”). 
 
DP ID :  CLIENT ID : 
NAME AND ADDRESS OF SHAREHOLDER 
(IN BLOCK CAPITALS) 

FOLIO NO. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
SIGNATURE OF THE SHARE HOLDER OR PROXY: ______________________ 
 

 
 
 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
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Form No. MGT-11 Proxy form 

[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014] 

Name of the Member(s) 

Registered Address 

E-mail Id Folio No /Client ID DP ID 

 

I/We, being the member(s) of ____________shares of the above named company. Hereby appoint 

Name : E-mail Id: 

Address: 

Signature , or failing him 

Name : E-mail Id: 

Address: 

Signature , or failing him 

Name : E-mail Id: 

Address: 

Signature , or failing him 

as my/ our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the 

Company, to be held on 30-09-2023, at 02:30 P.M. at 16A, Brabourne Road, 6th Floor, Kolkata – 700001 and through 

Video Conferencing (“VC”) / Other Audio-Visual Means (“OVAM”) and at any adjournment thereof in respect of such 

resolutions as are indicated below: 

Sr.No. Resolution(S) Vote 

For Against 

 ORDINARY BUSINESS   

1. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2023, 

the Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on that date and the Reports of the 

Directors and Auditors thereon. 

  

2. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Mahendra Singh (DIN 0769234) who retires by 

rotation and being eligible, offers himself for re-appointment. 
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Sr.No. Resolution(S) Vote 

For Against 

 ORDINARY BUSINESS   

3.  Appointment of M/s AMIT RAY & CO., Chartered Accountants (having firm 
Registration Number: 000483C), as statutory auditors of the company in place of 
M/s AMK & Associates, Chartered Accountants (having Firm Registration Number: 
0327817E). 

  

 SPECIAL BUSINESS   

4.  Regularization of Appointment and Remuneration of Mr. Sundeep Kumar Tayal 

(DIN 10196518) as Whole-time Director as per Companies Act, 2013. – Ordinary 

Resolution 

  

5. Change in designation of Mrs. Mousumi Sengupta (DIN: 07825625) to Non-

Executive-Non-Independent-Women Director. – Special Resolution 

  

* Applicable for investors holding shares in Electronic form. 

Signed this _____day of _____20___ 

Signature of Shareholder Signature of Proxy holder 
Signature of the    

Shareholder across Revenue Stamp 
Note: 1) This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office 
of the Company not less than 48 hours before the commencement of the Meeting. 
2) The proxy need not be a member of the company. 
 

EVEN(Electronic Voting Event Number) USER ID PASSWORD/PIN 

   

 
Note: E-voting period: 27-09- 2023 at 09.00 A.M. IST and ends on 29-09-2023 at 05.00 P.M. IST. 
If you have any query regarding e-voting Password/PIN, please contact at evoting@nsdl.co.in 

Affix 

Revenue 

Stamps 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT 
 

To  

The Shareholders, 

 

Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 56th Annual Report of the Company along with 

the Audited Financial Statements for the year ended on 31st March, 2023. 
 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

 
The Company’s financial performance for the year under review along with previous year’s figures are 

given hereunder: 

   

       

Particulars As on 31.03.2023 

(in Rs. ‘000) 

As on 31.03.2022 

(in Rs. ‘000) 

Total Income from Business operations                          2,49,577 2,27,440 

Total Expenses 2,47,502 2,23,975 

Profit before tax 2,057 3,465 

Current Tax 1,065 540 

Tax relating to previous Year (202) - 

Deferred tax (486) (2) 

Mat Credit - 1,468 

Profit for the Year 1,698 1,459 

   

Net Profit /(Loss) after Tax 1,698 1,459 

 

DIVIDEND 

 

The Board of Directors does not recommend any dividend for the year under review. 

 

RESERVES 

 

The company transferred profit of Rs. 16,98,030/- to Surplus A/c during the year. 

 

STATE OF COMPANY’S AFFAIRS 

 

The overall performance of the Company during the year under review was similar to last 

year. The year witnessed good demand of Jute Goods both in domestic and overseas markets. 

Financial positions of the company is given in the above paragraphs. 

 

HOLDING/SUBSIDIARY/ASSOCIATE 

 

The Company does not have any Holding, Subsidiary or Associate Company & it has not 

entered into any joint ventures.  
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ACCEPTANCE OF FIXED DEPOSITS 

 

The Company has not accepted any Fixed Deposits from general public within the purview of 

Section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013, during the year under review. 

 

SHARE CAPITAL 

 

The paid-up share capital as on 31st March, 2023 was Rs. 479.94 lacs. The Company has not 

issued shares with differential voting rights nor granted stock options nor sweat equity.  

 
DIRECTORS 

 

Mr. Mahendra Singh (DIN: 07692374) Directors of the Company, retires by rotation and 

being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.  
 

Your Board recommends his appointment / re-appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 

 

The composition of Board of Directors as on 31st March, 2023 is as under:- 

 

Mr. Mahendra Singh – Managing Director 

Mrs. Mousumi Sengupta – Independent Director 

Mr. Naba Kumar Das – Independent Director 

Mr. Aman Jain – Independent Director 

 

Additionally, Mr. Sundip Kumar Tayal has been appointed as an additional independent director on 

16th August 2023. 

 

KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

 

During the year under preview following changes took place in the composition of Key Managerial 

Personnel: 

 

Mr. Sneha Naredi resigned from the post of Company Secretary w.e.f. 13th February, 2023. 

 

Mrs. Archana Singh was appointed in the post of Company Secretary w.e.f. 13th February, 2023. 

 

NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION POLICY 

 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee works with the Board to determine the appropriate 

characteristics, skills and experience for the Board as a whole and its individual members with the 

objective of having a Board with diverse backgrounds and experience in business, government, 

education and public service. The Company has constituted a Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee with the responsibilities of formulating the criteria for determining qualifications, positive 

attributes and independence of a director and recommend to the Board a policy relating to the 

remuneration for the directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees.  

 

 

 



BANGALORE FORT FARMS LIMITED 
Regd, Office: 16A, Brabourne Road, 6th Floor,  

Kolkata – 700001 

  Email: info@bangalorefortfarms.com 

Telephone: (+91) 9073933003, (+91) 9073933004 

CIN: L51101WB1966PLC226442 

 

 

DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS 

 

The Company has received necessary declaration from all Independent Directors under 

section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 confirming 

that they meet the criteria of independence as prescribed in section 149(6) of the Companies 

Act, 2013. 

 

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION  

 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has carried out the annual 

performance evaluation of its own performance and of the Directors individually as well. A 

discussion was done considering the inputs received from the Directors, covering various 

aspects of the Board’s functioning such as adequacy of the composition of the Board and its 

Committees, Board culture, execution and performance of specific duties, obligations and 

governance. The performance evaluation of the Board and committees are usually carried out 

on the basis of questionnaires devised in house. 

 

A separate exercise was carried out to evaluate the performance of individual Directors who 

were evaluated on the basis of questionnaire, devised for this purpose. The Directors 

expressed their satisfaction with the evaluation process. 

 
BOARD MEETINGS 

 

The Board met six (6) times during the financial year, viz. 15-04-2022, 25-05-2022, 25-06-2022, 02-

08-2022, 14-11-2022 and 13-02-2023. The details of the Directors’ attendance at the Board Meetings 

are given below: 

 

Sl. No. Director No. of Meetings 

attended 

1 Mr. Mahendra Singh (Managing Director) 6 

2 Mr. Naba Kumar Das (Independent Director) 6 

3 Mr. Aman Jain (Independent Director) 

- Resigned w.e.f 29/05/2023 

6 

4 Mr. Umesh Sinha (Independent Director) 

- Resigned w.e.f 30/09/2022 

4 

5 Mrs. Mousumi Sengupta (Non-Executive Director) 

- Appointed w.e.f 25/06/2022 

3 

6 Mr. Sundip Kumar Tayal (Independent Director) 

- Appointed w.e.f 16/08/2023 

0 
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

 
In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 with regard to the 

Directors’ Responsibility Statement, your Board confirms that:- 

a) in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023, the 

applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to 

material departures; 

b) the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made 

judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 

state of affairs of the Company as at 31stMarch, 2023 and of the profit /loss of the Company for 

that period; 

c) the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 

records in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets 

of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities; 

d)  the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis; 

e)  the Directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all 

applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and operating effectively.  

f)  the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that 

such internal financial controls are adequate and were operating effectively; 

 

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 135 of the Act, the Company is not required to constitute a 

Corporate 

Social Responsibility Committee or to undertake any CSR activities. 

 

Therefore, the Company is not required to make any disclosure as specified in Section 134(3) (o) of 

the 

Act. 

 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 
Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the year under review, as stipulated under 

Regulation 34 of the SEBI LODR Regulations, 2015 with the Stock Exchanges in India, is included 

in a separate section annexed to and forming part of the Director's Report. 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE & NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE 

 

Pursuant to Sections 177 and 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rules made 

thereunder, the Company has constituted an Audit Committee, Nomination and 

Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Relationship Committee of the Board as the 

Company is listed with BSE Ltd.  
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The Audit Committee is working according to the terms of the Companies Act, and SEBI 

Listing Regulations, 2015 which includes duties and functions and also such other functions 

as maybe specifically delegated to it by the Board from time to time. Therefore, the Board 

has duly constituted Audit Committee comprising of Mr. Aman Jain, Independent Director; 

Mr. Naba Kumar Das, Independent Director and Mr. Mahendra Singh, Executive Director. 

The Audit committee held four meetings during the year 2022-23. 

 

However, on resignation of Mr. Aman Jain, Independent Director; the Board duly appointed 

Mr. Sundip Kumar Tayal, Independent Director, in the Audit Committee of the Company.  

 

The Audit Committee held four meetings on 25/05/2022, 02/08/2022, 14/11/2022 and 

13/02/2023 during the year ended 31st March 2023. The necessary quorum was present for all 

the meetings. 

 

The Company Secretary acts as a Secretary to the Committee. 

 

The terms of reference of Audit Committee includes:- 

a) the recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of auditors 

of the company;  

b) review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of 

audit process;  

c) examination of the financial statement and the auditors’ report thereon;  

d) approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the company with related 

parties;  

e) scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;  

f) valuation of undertakings or assets of the company, wherever it is necessary;  

g) evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems;  

h) monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters; 

i) any other as may be decided by the Board.   

 

The Board has also constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee comprising of Mr. 

Aman Jain, Independent Director; Mr. Naba Kumar Das, Independent Director and Mr. 

Mahendra Singh, Executive Director. 

 

However, on resignation of Mr. Aman Jain, Independent Director; the Board duly appointed 

Mr. Sundip Kumar Tayal, Independent Director, in the Nomination and Remuneration 

Committee of the Company.  

 

The role of Nomination and Remuneration Committee includes formulation of the criteria for 

determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a director and recommend 

to the Board a policy, relating to the remuneration of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel 

and other employees etc. The Nomination & Remuneration committee met four times during 

the year. 
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STAKEHOLDERS’ RELATIONSHIP COMMITTEE (FORMERLY SHARE 

TRANSFER CUM INVESTORS’ GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE) NOMENCLATURE 

AND TERMS OF REFERENCE OF THE COMMITTEE 

 

The Board of Directors of the Company has formed ‘Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee’ 

(‘the committee’). The committee deals with various matters relating to satisfactory redressal 

of shareholders and investors’ grievances and recommends measures for overall improvement 

in the quality of investor services. The Stakeholder’s Relationship Committee met three times 

during the year. An insight of the matters deals with by the committee is given hereunder: 

 

 To review and note all matters relating to the registration of transfer and transmission 

of shares and debentures, transposition of shares, sub-division of shares, issue of 

duplicate share certificates or allotment letters and certificates for debentures in lieu 

of those lost/misplaced; 

 

 To look into the redressal of shareholders’ and investors’ complaints relating to the 

transfer of shares, non-receipt of Annual Report/notices, dividends, etc;  

 

 To oversee the performance of the Registrar & Share Transfer Agents; 

 

 To review dematerialization and rematerialization of the shares of the Company; 

 

 To comply with all such directions of Ministry of Corporate Affairs & other regulatory 

bodies w.r.t. shareholders’/investors’ rights and market regulations, from time to time. 

 

DETAILS OF ESTABLISHMENT OF VIGIL MECHANISM 

 

As per the provisions of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 and 7 

of the Companies (Meeting of the Board and its Powers) Rules, 2013the Company has formed 

vigil mechanism named 'Whistle Blower Policy', wherein the employees / directors can report 

the instances of unethical behavior, actual or suspected fraud or any violation of the Code of 

Conduct and / or laws applicable to the Company and seek redressal. This mechanism 

provides appropriate protection to the genuine Whistle Blower, who avail of the mechanism. 

 
ADEQUACY OF INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL  

 

The Company has in place adequate internal financial controls with reference to the Financial 

Statements. During the year, such controls were tested and no reportable material weakness 

was observed in the design or implementation. 
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RISK MANAGEMENT 

 

During the year, Management of the Company evaluated the existing Risk Management 

Policy of the Company to make it more focused in identifying and prioritizing the risks, role 

of various executives in monitoring & mitigation of risk and reporting process. Its aim is to 

enhance shareholders value and provide an optimum risk-reward tradeoff. The Risk 

Management Policy has been reviewed and found adequate to the requirements of the 

Company, and approved by the Board. 

 

The Management evaluated various risks and that there is no element of risk identified that 

may threaten the existence of the Company. 

 

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

 

The Company has not developed and implemented any Corporate Social Responsibility 

initiatives as the said provisions are not applicable. 

 

LOAN, GUARANTEES AND INVESTMENTS 

 

   Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of Section 186 

of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the notes to the Financial Statements. 

 

CONTRACTS AND ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES 

 

All related party transactions that were entered into during the financial year were on an arm’s 

length basis and were in the ordinary course of business. There were no materially significant 

related party transactions made by the Company with Promoters, Directors, Key Managerial 

Personnel or other designated Persons which may have a potential conflict with the interest 

of the Company at large. Accordingly, no transaction are being reported in Form AOC- 2 in 

terms of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 8 of the Companies 

(Accounts) Rules, 2014. 

 

All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee as also the Board for 

approval. Prior omnibus approval of the Audit Committee is obtained for the transactions 

which are of a foreseen in repetitive nature. The Company has developed a Related Party 

Transactions Policy for purpose of identification and monitoring of such transactions. 
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AUDITORS & AUDITORS’ REPORT 

 

M/s. AMK & Associates, Chartered Accountants (FRN: 327817E) were appointed as 

Statutory Auditors of the Company at the 51st Annual General Meeting for 5 consecutive 

years until the conclusion of the 56th Annual General Meeting. 

 

M/s AMIT RAY & CO., Chartered Accountants (having firm Registration Number: 

000483C) proposed to be appointed in the said Annual General Meeting as the statutory 

auditor of the company from the Financial Year 2023-24 for a period of 5 consecutive years 

from the till the conclusion of the 61st AGM to be held in 2028. 

 

The Auditors have subjected themselves for the peer review process of the Institute of 

Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) and they hold a valid certificate issued by the “Peer 

Review Board” of ICAI. 

 

The observations, if any, made by the Auditors of the Company in their report read with 

relevant notes to the Accounts are self-explanatory and therefore do not call for any further 

comments. 

 
SECRETARIAL AUDIT  

 

Pursuant to provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board has appointed Mrs. 

NITU SINGH, Company Secretaries, Kolkata, to undertake Secretarial Audit of the Company for the 

Financial Year 2022-23. The Secretarial Audit Report is annexed herewith as Annexure "B". The 

Secretarial Audit Report does not contain any qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer. 

 

INTERNAL AUDIT 

 

As per the provisions of Section 138 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Board with the recommendation 

of the audit committee has appointed M/s. A. Bharadwaj & Co. (FRN: 329974E), Kolkata, to 

undertake Internal Audit of the Company. The Internal Audit Report does not contain any 

qualification, reservation, adverse remark or disclaimer. 

 

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES 

 

None of the employees were in receipt of remuneration in excess of the limits laid down under section 

197(12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment 

and Remuneration) Rules, 2014. Hence, no particulars are required to be given for the same. 

 

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE 

EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

 

The Company is not engaged in manufacturing, has no foreign collaboration and has not exported or 

imported any goods or services. 



BANGALORE FORT FARMS LIMITED 
Regd, Office: 16A, Brabourne Road, 6th Floor,  

Kolkata – 700001 

  Email: info@bangalorefortfarms.com 

Telephone: (+91) 9073933003, (+91) 9073933004 

CIN: L51101WB1966PLC226442 

 

 
 

 

EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN 

 

The details forming part of the extract of the Annual Return in Form MGT – 9 is annexed herewith as 

Annexure ‘A’. 

 

STATUTORY DISCLOSURES 

 
A copy of audited financial statements of the said Companies will be made available to the members 

of the Company, seeking such information at any point of time.  A cash flow statement for the year 

2022-23 is attached to the Balance Sheet. 

 

GENERAL DISCLOSURES 

 

The Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items during 

the year under review as: 

 

1. During the year under review, no significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or 

Courts or Tribunals which impact the going concern status and Company’s operations in future. 

 

2. No material changes and commitments have occurred between the end of financial year of the 

Company to which the financial statements relate and the date of the Report, affecting the financial 

position of the Company under section 134(3)(1) of the Companies Act, 2013. 

 

3. No Deposits covered under Chapter V of the Companies Act, 2013 were accepted. 

 

4. No equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise; or shares (including 

sweat equity shares) were issued to employees of the Company under any scheme. 

 

5. During the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of 

Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013. 

 

FRAUD REPORTING (REQUIRED BY THE COMPANIES AMENDMENT ACT, 2015) 

 

The Company has adopted best practices for fraud prevention and it follows confidential, anonymous 

reporting about fraud or abuse to the appropriate responsible officials of the Company. No fraud on 

or by the company has been reported by the Statutory Auditors. 
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For BANGALORE FORT FARMS LIMITED 

Place: Kolkata       

Date: 31st July 2023 
  Sd/- 

Mahendra Singh 

Managing Director 

(DIN: 07692374) 

 
Sd/- 

        Mousumi Sengupta 

 Director 

        (DIN: 07825625) 

 



BANGALORE FORT FARMS LIMITED 
Regd, Office: 16A, Brabourne Road, 6th Floor,  

Kolkata – 700001 

  Email: info@bangalorefortfarms.com 

Telephone: (+91) 9073933003, (+91) 9073933004 

CIN: L51101WB1966PLC226442 

 

Annexure - ‘A’ 

Form No. MGT-9 

Extract of Annual Return 
As on the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023 

 
[Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12 (1) of the 

Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014] 

I. REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS: 

1. CIN L51101WB1966PLC226442 

2. Registration Date 24/10/1966 

3. Name of the Company BANGALORE FORT FARMS LIMITED 

4. Category / Sub-Category of the Company Company Limited by shares 

5. Address of the Registered Office and contact details 16A, Brabourne Road, 6th Floor, 

Kolkata – 700001 

Tele-Fax No: (+91) 9073933003, (+91) 9073933004 

Email Id: info@bangalorefortfarms.com 

6. Whether listed company Yes 

7. Name, Address and contact details of Registrar & Transfer 

Agents (RTA), if Any 

CAMEO CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED 

“Subramanian Building” #1, Club House Road, Chennai 

- 600 002 

PH: 91-44-2846 0390 

 

II. PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY 

All the business activities contributing 10% or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:                   

SL 

No 
Name & Description of main products/services 

NIC Code of the  

Product /service 

% to total turnover  

of the company 

1. 
Agro Sales  

 
10309 98.19% 

2 Other non-operating Items  1.81% 

 

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES  

Sl. 

No 

Name & Address of the Company CIN/GLN Holding/ 

Subsidiary/ 

Associate 

% of  

Shares 

Held 

Applicable  

Section 

 

 

NIL NIL NIL NIL NA 
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity) 

i. Category-wise Share Holding 

Category of 

Shareholders 

No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year No. of Shares held at the end of the year % 

Change 

during 

the 

year 

 

 

Demat Physical Total % of 

Total 

Shares 

Demat Physical Total % of Total 

Shares 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A. Promoters          

(1)Indian                  

a) Individual/ HUF - - - - - - - - - 

b) Central Govt. - - - - - - - -  

c)  State Govt(s) - - - - - - - -  

d)  Bodies Corp. 1595693 - 1595693 33.25 1595693 - 1595693 33.25 - 

e) Banks / FI - - - - - - - -  

f)  Any Other - - - - - - - -  

Sub-total (A) (1):- 1595693 - 1595693 33.25 1595693 - 1595693 33.25 - 

(2)Foreign          

a) NRIs - 

Individuals   

- - - - - - - -  

b) Other – 

Individuals 

- - - - - - - -  

c) Bodies Corp. - - - - - - - -  

d) Banks / FI - - - - - - - -  

e) Any Other…. - - - - - - - -  

Sub-total (A) (2):- - - - - - - - -  

Total shareholding 

of Promoter (A) = 

(A)(1)+(A)(2) 

1595693 - 1595693 33.25 1595693 - 1595693 33.25 - 

B. Public 

Shareholding 

         

1. Institutions          

a) Mutual Funds - - - - - - - - - 

b) Banks / FI 300 10 310 0.01 300 10 310 0.01 - 

c) Central Govt. - - - - - - - - - 

d) State Govt(s) - - - - - - - - - 

e) Venture Capital 

Funds 

- - - - - - - - - 

f) Insurance 

Companies 

- - - - - - - - - 

g) FIIs - - - - - - - - - 

h) Foreign Venture 

Capital Funds 

- - - - - - - - - 

i)  Others (Specify) - - - - - - - - - 

Sub-total (B)(1):- 300 10 310 0.01 300 10 310 0.01 - 
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ii. Shareholding of Promoters 

Sl.

No. 

 

Shareholder’s Name 

 

Shareholding at the beginning of the year Shareholding at the end of the year 

 

% 

change In 

share 

Holding 

during 

the year 

No. of 

Shares 

% of total 

Shares of 

the 

company 

%of Shares 

Pledged / 

encumbered to 

total shares 

No. of 

Shares 

% of total 

Shares of 

the 

company 

% of Shares 

Pledged / 

encumbered 

to total 

shares 

 

1. Revati Holdings Pvt. 

Ltd. 

1595693 33.25 - 1595693 33.25 - - 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

2. Non- Institutions          

a) Bodies Corp. 1291446 4650 1296096 27.01 1291446 4650 1296096 27.01 - 

i) Indian - - - - - - - - - 

ii) Overseas  - - - - -  - - - 

b) Individuals - - - - - - - - - 

i) Individual 

shareholders holding 

nominal share capital 

upto Rs. 2 lakh 

180571 407619 588190 12.26 190034 395209 585243 12.19 -0.08 

ii) Individual 

shareholders holding 

nominal share capital 

in excess of Rs2 lakh 

1275495 40300 1315795 27.42 1275495 40300 1315795 27.42 - 

c) Others (Specify) 

- Clearing Members 

- HUF 

- Trusts 

3316 - 3316 0.04 6262 1 6263 0.13 0.08 

Sub-total (B)(2):- 2750828 452569 3203397 66.74 2763237 440160 3203397 66.74 - 

Total Public 

Shareholding 

(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2) 

2751128 452579 3203707 66.75 2763537 440170 3203707 66.75 - 

C. Shares held by 

Custodian for GDRs 

& ADRs 

- - - - - - - - - 

Grand Total 

(A+B+C) 

4346821 452579 4799400 100.00 4359230 440170 4799400 100.00 - 
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iii. Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change):  

Sl. 

No. 

 

 Shareholding at the beginning 

of the year 

Cumulative Shareholding during 

the year 

No. of 

shares 

% of total shares 

of the company 

No. of 

shares 

% of total shares of 

the company 

 At the beginning of the year 

No change  Changes during the year 

At the end of the year 

 

 

iv. Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and 

ADRs): 

 

Sl. 

No. 

 

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders 

 

Shareholding at the beginning 

of the year 

Cumulative shareholding during 

the year 

No. of 

shares 

% of total shares 

of the company 

No. of 

shares 

% of total shares of 

the company 

1. Jagsakti Merchandise Private Ltd     

At the beginning of the year 795000 16.56 795000 16.56 

Changes during the year No change 

At the End of the year      

2. Ros Advisory Pvt Ltd 

At the beginning of the year 444400 9.26 444400 9.26 

Changes during the year No change 

At the End of the year      

3. Srabanti Singharoy     

 At the beginning of the year 250300 5.22 250300 5.22 

 Changes during the year No change 

 At the End of the year      

4. Arjun Singh     

 At the beginning of the year 200000 4.17 200000 4.17 

 Changes during the year No change 

 At the End of the year      

5. Md. Maqsood Alam     

 At the beginning of the year 200000 4.17 200000 4.17 

 Changes during the year No change 

 At the End of the year      

6. Vinay Kumar Singh     

 At the beginning of the year 100000 2.08 100000 2.08 

 Changes during the year No change 

 At the End of the year      

7. Parmeshwar Singh     

 At the beginning of the year 100000 2.08 100000 2.08 

 Changes during the year No change 

 At the End of the year      

8. Nidhi Mahajan     

 At the beginning of the year 74333 1.55 74333 1.55 

 Changes during the year No change 

 At the End of the year      

9. Bhanu Mahajan     

 At the beginning of the year 72733 1.52 72733 1.52 

 Changes during the year No change 

 At the End of the year      
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10. Ajay Kumar Singh     

 At the beginning of the year 50000 1.04 50000 1.04 

 Changes during the year No change 

 At the End of the year      

 

v. Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel: 

Sl. 

No. 

For Each of the Directors and KMP Shareholding at the beginning of 

the year 

Cumulative Shareholding during the 

year 

No. of shares % of total shares 

of the company 

No. of 

shares 

% of total shares of 

the company 

 At the beginning of the year 

NO CHANGE Changes during the year 

At the end of the year 

  

 V. INDEBTEDNESS 

 Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment (In Rupees` 000) 

  
Secured Loans 

excluding deposits 
Unsecured Loans Deposits Total Indebtedness 

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial 

year 

    

i) Principal Amount 38,496 - - 38,496 

ii) Interest due but not paid  - - - - 

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - - 

Total (i+ii+iii) 38,496 - - 38,496 

Change in Indebtedness during the financial 

year 

    

·   Addition - - - - 

·   Reduction 6,115 - - 6,115 

Net Change (6,115) - - (6,115) 

Indebtedness at the end of the financial year     

i) Principal Amount 32,381 - - 32,381 

ii) Interest due but not paid  - - - - 

iii) Interest accrued but not due - - - - 

Total (i+ii+iii) 32,381 - - 32,381 

     

 

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL 

A. Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole Time Directors and/or Manager:  

Sl. 

No. 

Particulars of Remuneration Name of 

MD/WTD/Manager 
Total 

Amount 
  Mahendra Singh 

(MD)* 

 

1. Gross salary 

(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the Income-tax 

Act,1961 
- - 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 - - 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary under section 17(3) of the Income-tax Act,1961 - - 

2. Stock Option - - 

3. Sweat Equity - - 
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      B. Remuneration to other Directors:        (In Rupees`) 

 

Sl. 

No. 
Particulars of Remuneration  

Aman Jain Naba 

Kumar 

Das 

Mousumi 

Sengupta* 

Umesh 

Sinha** 

Total 

1. Independent Directors      

• Fee for attending board /committee 

meetings 

- - - - - 

• Commission - - - - - 

• Others, please specify - - - - - 

Total (1) - - - - - 

 Other Non-Executive 

Directors 

- - - - - 

• Fee for attending board /committee 

meetings 

- - - - - 

• Commission - - - - - 

• Others, please specify - - - - - 

Total (2) - - - - - 

 Total (B)=(1+2) - - - - - 

 Total Managerial 

Remuneration 

- - - - - 

 Overall Ceiling as per the Act  

 

    * Appointed w.e.f. 25th June, 2022 

* Resigned w.e.f. 30th September, 2022 

 

C. Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel other than MD / Manager/WTD:    (In Rupees`) 

 

S

l

. 

N

o. 

Particulars of 

Remuneration 

 Key Managerial Personnel 

CE

O 

CFO Company 

Secretary 

Company 

Secretary 

Total 

Bidhan 

Chandra Roy 

Sneha Naredi* Archana 

Singh** 

1 Gross salary 

(a) Salary as per provisions 

contained in section 17(1) of 

the Income-tax Act, 1961 

(b) Value of perquisites u/s 

17(2) Income-tax Act, 1961 

(c) Profits in lieu of salary 

under section 17(3) Income-

tax Act, 1961 

 6,00,000 1,56,964 27,643 
7,84,60

7 

2 Stock Option  - - - - 

4. Commission 

- as % of profit 

- others, specify 

- - 

5. Others, please specify   

 Total (A) - - 

 Ceiling as per the Act   
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3 Sweat Equity  - - - - 

4 Commission 

- as % of profit 

- others, specify 

 - - - - 

5 Others, please specify  - - - - 

 Total 
 6,00,000 1,56,964 27,643 

7,84,60

7 

 

   * Resigned w.e.f. 13th February, 2023 

   ** Appointed w.e.f. 13th February, 2023 

 

VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:  

Type Section of the 

Companies Act 

Brief 

Description 

Details of Penalty 

/Punishment/Compounding 

fees imposed 

Authority 

[RD/NCLT/ 

COURT] 

Appeal made, 

if any (give 

Details) 

A.COMPANY 

Penalty 

NIL Punishment 

Compounding 

B. DIRECTORS 

Penalty 

NIL Punishment 

Compounding 

C. OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT 

Penalty 
NIL 

 
Punishment 

Compounding 

 

 

 

For and on behalf of the Board Directors 

For BANGALORE FORT FARMS LIMITED 

Place: Kolkata       

Date: 31st July 2023 
  Sd/- 

Mahendra Singh 

Managing Director 

(DIN: 07692374) 

 
Sd/- 

        Mousumi Sengupta 

 Director 

        (DIN: 07825625) 
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Annexure - ‘B’ 

 

FORM NO. MR-3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2023 

 

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 9 of The Companies 

(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014] 

 

 

To 

The Members 

BANGALORE FORT FARMS LIMITED 

Reg. Office:  16A, Brabourne Road,  

6th Floor,  

Kolkata - 700001  

 

 

We have conducted the Secretarial Audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and 

the adherence to good corporate practices by Bangalore Fort Farms Ltd (CIN 

L51101WB1966PLC226442) (hereinafter called the Company). Secretarial Audit was conducted 

in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 

compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

 

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed 

and other records maintained by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, 

its officers, agents and authorised representatives during the conduct of Secretarial Audit, we hereby 

report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the financial year 

ended on 31stMarch, 2023, generally complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder, to the 

extent applicable, and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance-

mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter. 

 

1. I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 

maintained by the Company for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023, according to the 

provisions of: 

 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made thereunder to the extent applicable; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made thereunder; 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed thereunder; 
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(iv) The Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (FEMA) and the rules and regulations made 

thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct Investment (FDI), Overseas Direct Investment (ODI) and 

External Commercial Borrowings (ECBs) to the extent applicable; 

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 (SEBI Act): 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) 

Regulations, 2011; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2015 (effective from 1st December, 2015); 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992 

(effective up to 14thMay, 2015) and The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of 

Insider Trading) Regulations, 2015 (effective from 15thMay, 2015); 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2009; 

  

2. Provisions of the following Regulations and Guidelines were not applicable to the Company 

under the Audit period:- 

 

(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits) 

Regulations,2014; 

(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) 

Regulations, 2008; 

(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer 

Agents) Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; 

(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; 

and 

(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; 

 

3. The Company is into Agro trading and manufacturing and export of Jute products to the best of 

my knowledge and believe and as confirmed by the Management of the Company the Other relevant 

Laws are specifically Applicable the Company: 

 

(i) The Special Economic Zones Act, 2005 and the rules made thereunder 

(ii) Jute & Jute Textiles Control Orders 2000 & 2016 (as applicable) 
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4. I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following: 

 

(i) Secretarial Standards on Meetings of the Board of Directors (SS-1) and on General Meetings 

(SS-2) issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India and made effective from 

1stJuly, 2015. 

(ii) The Company being a listed company, the provisions of the Listing Agreement/Revised 

Listing Agreement with Stock Exchange are applicable. The Company is Listed with BSE 

and CSE. 

 

5. I further report that the Company has, in my opinion, complied with the provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules made under that Act as notified by Ministry of Corporate 

Affairs and guided by the Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, with 

regard to: 

 

(a) Maintenance of various statutory registers and documents and making necessary entries therein; 

(b) Closure of the Register of Members. 

(c) Forms, returns, documents and resolutions required to be filed with the Registrar of Companies 

and the Central Government; 

(d) Service of documents by the Company on its Members, Auditors and the Registrar of 

Companies; 

(e) notice of Board meetings and Committee meetings of Directors; 

(f) the meetings of Directors and Committees of Directors including passing of resolutions by 

circulation; 

(g) minutes of proceedings of General Meetings and of the Board and its Committee meetings; 

(h) approvals of the Members, the Board of Directors, the Committees of Directors and the 

government authorities, wherever required; 

(i) constitution of the Board of Directors/Committee(s) of Directors, appointment, retirement and 

reappointment of Directors including the Managing Director and Whole-time Directors; 

(j) payment of remuneration to Directors including the Managing Director and Whole-time 

Directors; 

(k) appointment and remuneration of Auditors and Cost Auditors; 

(l) transfers and transmissions of the Company’s shares and issue and dispatch of duplicate 

certificates of shares; 

(m) declaration and payment of dividends; 
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(n) transfer of certain amounts as required under the Act to the Investor Education and Protection 

Fund and uploading of details of unpaid and unclaimed dividends on the websites of the 

Company and the Ministry of Corporate Affairs; 

(o) borrowings and registration, modification and satisfaction of charges wherever applicable; 

(p) investment of the Company’s funds including investments and loans to others; 

(q) form of balance sheet as prescribed under Part I, form of statement of profit and loss as 

prescribed under Part II and General Instructions for preparation of the same as prescribed in 

Schedule III to the Act; 

(r) Directors’ report; 

(s) Contracts, common seal, registered office and publication of name of the Company; and 

(t) Generally, all other applicable provisions of the Act and the Rules made under the Act. 

 

6. I further report that 

The Board of Directors of the Company is constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, 

Women Director, Non-Executive Directors, and Independent Directors. 

 

Adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes 

on agenda were sent at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining 

further information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful 

participation at the meeting. 

 

i. Decision in the meeting of Board of Directors were taken unanimously and recorded as part 

of the minutes. 

ii. The Company has obtained all necessary approvals under the various Provisions of the Act; 

and 

iii. There was no prosecution initiated and no fines or penalties were imposed during the year 

under review under the Act, SEBI Act, SCRA, Depositories Act, Listing Agreement and 

Rules, Regulations and Guidelines framed under these Acts against / on the Company, its 

Directors and Officers. 

iv. The Directors have complied with the disclosure requirements in respect of their eligibility 

of appointment, their being independent and compliance with the Code of Business Conduct 

& Ethics for Directors and Management Personnel; 
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7. The Company has complied with the provisions of the Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 

2013 and the Rules made under that Act, with regard to maintenance of minimum public 

shareholding. 

 

8. I further report that the Company has complied with the provisions of the Depositories Act, 1996 

and the Byelaws framed thereunder by the Depositories with regard to 

dematerialization/rematerialisation of securities and reconciliation of records of dematerialized 

securities with all securities issued by the Company. 

 

9. The Company has complied with the provisions of the FEMA, 1999 and the Rules and 

Regulations made under that Act to the extent applicable. 

 

10. I further report that: 

 

a. the Company has complied with the requirements under the Equity Listing Agreements entered 

into with Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited and Bombay Stock Exchange; 

b. the Company has complied with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011 including the provisions with 

regard to disclosures and maintenance of Records required under the said Regulations; 

c. the Company has complied with the provisions of the Securities and Exchange Board of India 

(Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992 including the provisions with regard to 

disclosures and maintenance of records required under the said Regulations; 

 

11. I further report that based on the information received and records maintained there are adequate 

systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the 

Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and 

guidelines. 

 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the company commensurate with 

the size and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 

rules, regulations and guidelines. 
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These events have major bearing on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, 

rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sd/- 

NITU SINGH 

Company Secretary in Practice Membership No.: FCS -  12157 

C. P. No.: 24204 

Peer Review UIN: S2012WB179900 

 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 31st July, 2023 

 

[UIDN: F012157E000908943] 

 

*This Report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed to this Report as 

Annexure – I integral part of this Report.  
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Annexure - I 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2023 

 

To 

The Members 

BANGALORE FORT FARMS LIMITED 

Reg. Office:  16A, Brabourne Road,  

6th Floor,  

Kolkata - 700001  

 

Our Secretarial Audit Report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

 

1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit. 

2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable 

assurance about the correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. The verification was 

done on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe 

that the processes and practices, we followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of 

Accounts of the Company. 

4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance 

of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, 

standards is the responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification 

of procedures on test basis. 

6. The Secretarial Audit Report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company 

nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs 

of the Company. 

Sd/- 

NITU SINGH 

Company Secretary in Practice Membership No.: FCS -  12157 

C. P. No.: 24204 

Peer Review UIN: S2012WB179900 

 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 31st July, 2023 

 

[UIDN: F012157E000908943] 
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Annexure- ‘C’ 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSIONS AND ANALYSIS REPORT 

 

INDUSTRY STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENTS 

The jute industry involves the cultivation, processing, and manufacturing of jute, a natural fiber derived 

from the plants of the Corchorus genus. Jute is primarily used for making various products, including 

sacks, bags, textiles, and other environmentally friendly goods. 

 

The jute industry has been exploring new avenues for jute fiber utilization. Innovations in processing 

techniques have led to the production of finer and softer jute fibers suitable for textiles and fashion 

items. 

 

With the growing global emphasis on sustainability, the jute industry gained attention due to its 

biodegradable and renewable nature. Jute is often seen as an environmentally friendly alternative to 

synthetic fibers and materials. 

 

In jute-producing countries like India and Bangladesh, governments have shown interest in supporting 

the jute industry. Policies related to jute cultivation, processing, and export have been introduced to 

boost the sector and provide livelihoods to rural communities. 

 

OVERVIEW OF THE COMPANY: 

The Company is into Jute and Agro trading and has also entered into exports of Jute bags and 

accessories after setting up a unit in Falta SEZ. It has also spread hands in the import and export of 

metal handicrafts etc along with raw jute and merchandise, import, export of metal handicrafts, 

merchandise etc. 

 

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE: 

Your Company could not declare any dividend to the shareholders of the company due to inadequacy 

of the profits. However, the management is confident that in coming years the company would be in a 

position to declare strong financials. 

 

BUSINESS STRATEGY: 

Growth in demand of Jute fibres and other jute products due to its diversification and increasing use 

jute handicrafts and products are the key factors based on which the company has formulated its 

expansion plans. The company will continue to cater the domestic market while exploring diversified 

opportunities in the international market for Jute products and handicraft items. 

 

RISK AND CONCERNS: 

The Company is exposed to trading risk due to price vitality. In the Jute production segment continuous 

increase in wage costs coupled with labour productivity issues and inability to achieve optimum 

utilization of machines remain the single biggest worry for the industry burdened with competition from 

Bangladeshi jute products produced with cheap de-unionized labour. 

 

The jute industry has faced challenges such as competition from synthetic materials, fluctuating 

demand, and modernization issues. Efforts have been made to address these challenges through 

innovation and diversification. 

 

BUSINESS SEGMENT: 

The Company is presently into Single Business Segment. 
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OPPORTUNITIES & THREATS: 

 

Opportunities: 

 With the rise in awareness of disposal issues of plastic, it has been banned around the globe. This 

gives the much needed boost to the Jute industry. The use of Jute products is increasing due to its 

biodegradability and sustainability with the environment. These biodegradable and natural fibers 

have made space due to their eco-friendly nature. 

 Different incentive schemes by government to promote jute goods and various products made out 

of Jute like Lifestyle and promotional bags, Jute geo-textile, upholstery, apparels and fashion bags 

shall lay down a foundation for the continuous increase in demand of Jute. 

 

The major threats are: 

 

 Dilution of compulsory Jute packing order and lower order from government can adversely affect 

the Jute market. 

 Shortage of skilled labor 

 Increasing employee and wage cost results in higher conversion cost 

 Competition from Bangladeshi Jute goods and synthetic packaging material. 

 

INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM: 

The Company has set up internal control procedures commensurate with its nature of the business. 

These business procedures ensure optimum use and protection of the resources and compliance with 

the policies, procedures and statutes. The internal control systems provide for well-defined policies, 

guidelines and authorizations and approval procedures. The prime objective of such audits is to test the 

adequacy and effectiveness of the internal controls laid down by management and to suggest 

improvements. 

 

FUTURE OUTLOOK: 

The future outlook for the business appears very promising, encouraging and the Company proposes to 

take advantage of the growing demand in the Jute products with special focus in export segment and 

hence plan to take necessary steps in this decision. 

 

We are exploring international market for Jute products like Bags, Accessories and other decorative 

items. The overall market conditions at present give a promising view of the future market of Jute items. 

 

CODE OF CONDUCT: 

The Code of Conduct for the Board of Directors and the Senior Management is disclosed on the website 

of the company. 

 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENT: 

Statement made in this section of the report is based on the prevailing position in the jute industry and 

market conditions and future expectations. Actual results might differ from what we perceive with 

respect to Company’s outlook and performance. 

 

For and on behalf of the Board 

For Bangalore Fort Farms Limited 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 31st July, 2023 

Sd/- 

Bidhan Chandra Roy 

Chief Financial Officer 
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CEO/CFO Certification 
   

We hereby certify that: 

  

a)    We have reviewed the financial statements and cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March, 

2023 and to the best of our knowledge and belief: 

  

i)       these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or 

contain statements that might be misleading; 

  

ii)      these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in 

compliance with existing Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations. 

  

b)    They are, to the best of our knowledge and belief; no transactions entered into by the Company 

during the year ended 31st March, 2023 are fraudulent, illegal or violate any of the Company’s code 

of conduct. 

  

c)    We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting 

and we have evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to 

financial reporting. Deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of 

which we are aware have been disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee and steps have 

been taken to rectify these deficiencies. 

  

d)    We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that there are no: 

 

i)  Significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year under 

reference; 

ii)  Significant changes in accounting policies during the year requiring disclosure in the notes to 

the financial statements; and 

iii)  Instances during the year of significant fraud with involvement therein, if any, of the 

management or any employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control 

system over financial reporting. 

 

 

       For and on behalf of the Board 

For Bangalore Fort Farms Limited 

Place: Mumbai 

Date: 31st July, 2023 

 

Sd/- 

Bidhan Chandra Roy 

Chief Financial Officer 

 
         

  Sd/- 

Mahendra Singh 

Managing Director 

DIN: 07692374 
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WHISTLEBLOWER POLICY 

Introduction: 

The Whistleblower Policy ("the Policy") of M/s BANGALORE FORT FARMS LIMITED is designed 

to provide a mechanism for all employees, directors, vendors, suppliers, contractors, customers, 

and other stakeholders to report any concerns or instances of unethical behavior, fraud, corruption, 

or any other illegal activities within the company. The Policy is intended to ensure that such reports 

are handled with confidentiality, impartiality, and promptness, while also protecting the interests 

of the whistleblower. 

Objective: 

The objective of the Whistleblower Policy is to: 

a. Encourage employees and stakeholders to report any instances of unethical behaviour, fraud, or 

illegal activities occurring within the company. 

b. Establish a confidential and secure reporting channel for whistleblowers to voice their concerns. 

c. Ensure prompt and effective investigation of reported concerns. 

d. Protect whistleblowers from any form of retaliation or victimization. 

 

Scope: 

The Whistleblower Policy applies to all employees, directors, vendors, suppliers, contractors, 

customers, and other stakeholders of M/s BANGALORE FORT FARMS LIMITED. 

 

Reporting Channels: 

a. Whistleblowers are encouraged to report their concerns through any of the following channels: 

Email address designated for whistleblowing: cs@bangalorefortfarms.com 

Written communication addressed to the designated authority: Mrs. ARCHANA SINGH 

 

b. The whistleblowing channels will be prominently communicated to all employees and 

stakeholders through appropriate means, ensuring ease of access and confidentiality. 

Reporting Procedure: 

a. Whistleblowers should provide all relevant details and information related to the concern being 

reported, including the nature of the incident, individuals involved, timeframes, and supporting 

evidence, if available. 

b. Anonymous reporting is allowed, but whistleblowers are encouraged to provide their contact 

details to facilitate the investigation process and maintain confidentiality. 
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c. The company's designated authority will be responsible for receiving and acknowledging 

whistleblower reports. 

d. Whistleblower reports will be treated with utmost confidentiality and shared only with those 

involved in the investigation process, on a need-to-know basis. 

 

Investigation Process: 

a. The designated authority or an appointed investigation team will carry out a thorough and 

impartial investigation of the reported concerns. 

b. The investigation team will maintain confidentiality and ensure that no individual is prejudiced 

during the investigation process. 

c. The investigation will be conducted in a timely manner, ensuring fairness and adherence to legal 

and regulatory requirements. 

 

Protection and Non-Retaliation: 

a. M/s BANGALORE FORT FARMS LIMITED strictly prohibits any form of retaliation or victimization 

against whistleblowers who report concerns in good faith. 

b. Whistleblowers who believe they have faced retaliation or victimization should report such 

incidents immediately to the designated authority. 

c. M/s BANGALORE FORT FARMS LIMITED will take appropriate action to investigate and address 

any allegations of retaliation or victimization promptly. 

 

Disciplinary Action: 

a. If an investigation confirms any unethical behavior, fraud, or illegal activities, appropriate 

disciplinary action will be taken against the individuals involved, in accordance with the company's 

policies and applicable laws. 

b. Disciplinary action may include, but is not limited to, counseling, warnings, suspension, 

termination, or legal action, as deemed appropriate. 

 

Communication and Awareness: 

a. M/s BANGALORE FORT FARMS LIMITED will conduct regular training and awareness programs 

to educate employees and stakeholders about the Whistleblower Policy and their rights and 

obligations. 

b. The Policy will be communicated to all employees and stakeholders through various 

communication channels, such as intranet portals, employee handbooks, and training sessions. 
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Policy Review: 

The Whistleblower Policy will be reviewed periodically to ensure its effectiveness and compliance 

with relevant laws and regulations. Any necessary amendments or updates will be made 

accordingly. 

Confidentiality: 

All information related to whistleblower reports and investigations will be treated with the utmost 

confidentiality, except as required by law or in the course of legal proceedings. 

Note: This is a sample Whistleblower Policy. Companies are advised to consult with legal 

professionals and adapt the policy to their specific requirements and in compliance with local laws 

and regulations. 

 

 

Certified to be true copy 

For M/s BANGALORE FORT FARMS LIMITED 

 

Sd/- 

MAHENDRA SINGH 

MANAGING DIRECTOR 

DIN: 07692374 
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CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS  

(pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015) 

 

 

To, 

The Members of 

BANGALORE FORT FARMS LIMITED 

16A, BRABOURNE ROAD, 6TH FLOOR,  

KOLKATA - 700001 

 

 

I have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors 

of M/s BANGALORE FORT FARMS LIMITED having CIN-L51101WB1966PLC226442 and having 

registered office at 16A, Brabourne Road, 6th Floor, Kolkata - 700001 (hereinafter referred to as “the 

Company”), produced before me by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance 

with Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities Exchange Board of India 

(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. 

 

In my opinion and to the best of my information and according to the verifications (including Directors 

Identification Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations 

furnished to me by the Company & its officers, I hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of 

the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st March, 2023 have been debarred or 

disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, or any such other Statutory Authority. 

 

 

Ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility 

of the management of the Company. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our 

verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the 

efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.  

 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 25th May, 2022 Date: 10.06.2023                            Sd/- 

                                                                                           Name: Pankaj Kumar Modi     

Company Secretary in Practice 

Membership No.: 28600 

                   CP No.: 12472 

         [UDIN: A028600E000476278] 

Sr. 

No 

Name of Director DIN Date of appointment 

in Company 

 

1 Mr. Mahendra Singh 07692374 11/08/2018 

2 Mrs.  Mousumi Sengupta  07825625 25/06/2022 

3 Mr. Aman Jain 08187995 06/02/2019 

4 Mr. Naba Kumar Das 02604632 14/08/2019 

http://www.mca.gov.in/
























Particulars Note No. As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

ASSETS

(1) Non-current assets

(a) Property , Plant and equipment 2 31,461                              21,051                               

(b) Deferred Tax Assets (Net) 3 542                                   56                                      

(c) Financial assets

            (i) Loans

(d) Other non-current assets 4 2                                       5,325                                 

32,005                              26,432                               

(2) Current assets

(a)   Inventories 5 31,637                              34,164                               

(b)   Financial assets

           (i)  Trade receivables 6 43,410                              35,072                               

           (ii)  Cash and cash equivalents 7 1,250                                10,885                               

           (iii)  Bank balances other than cash & cash equivalent 8 73                                     73                                      

           (iv)  Others Financial Assets 9 184                                   243                                    

(c) Loans 10 2,500                                3,074                                 

(d) Current assets tax assets (Net) -                                         

(e) Other current assets 11 25,193                              27,361                               

1,04,248                            1,10,872                            

Total Assets 1,36,252                            1,37,304                            

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Equity

(a)   Equity Share capital 12 47,994                              47,994                               

(b)   Other Equity 13 17,22,875                          24,833                               

17,70,869                          72,827                               

LIABILITIES

(1) Non-current liabilities

(a)    Financial liabilities

           (i)  Borrowings 14 6,543                                9,292                                 

(b)   Deferred tax liabilities (Net) -                                    

(c) Provisions 15 138                                   128                                    

6,681                                9,420                                 

(2) Current liabilities

(a)   Financial liabilities

           (i)  Borrowings 16 25,839 29,204                               

           (ii)  Trade payables

(A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises 

and small enterprises 511                                   

(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than 

micro enterprises and small enterprises
23,463 15,677                               

(b) Current assets tax liabilites (net) 135 590                                    

(c) Other current liabilities 18 5,082                  9,585                                 

(d) Provisions 19 4                                       1                                        

55,034                              55,057                               

Total Equity and liabilities 18,32,584                          1,37,304                            

Summary of Significant Accounting policies 1

See accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statement

In terms of our report of even date attached herewith.

For AMK & Associates Sd/- Sd/-

Chartered Accountants Mousumi Sengupta

Firm's Registration No.327817E Managing Director Director

DIN : 07692374 DIN: 07825625

Sd/-

Bhupendra Kumar Bhutia Sd/- Sd/-

Partner Archana Singh

Membership No. 059363 (CS)

Place: Kolkata

Date : - The 29th day of May, 2023

 Balance Sheet as at 31 March, 2023

BANGALORE FORT FARMS LIMITED

Amount (Rs.'000)

Bidhan Chandra Roy

(CFO)                                          

17

Mahendra Singh



Particulars
Note 

No.

For the year ended 31st 

March, 2023

For the year ended 31st 

March, 2022

I Revenue from Operation 20 2,44,633                         2,23,574                           

II Other Income 21 4,944                              3,866                                

III Total Revenue (I+II) 2,49,577                         2,27,440                           

IV EXPENSES:

Purchase of Stock-In-Trade 22 2,25,455                         1,93,404                           

Changes in Inventories of Stock-in-Trade 23 2,526                              1,990                                

Employees Benefit Expenses 24 1,177                              1,240                                

Finance Cost 25 3,276                              3,201                                

Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 2 1,759                              1,896                                

Other Expenses 26 13,309                            22,244                              

Total Expenses 2,47,502                         2,23,975                           

V Profit  / (Loss) before Exceptional Items & Tax (III-IV) 2,075                              3,465                                

VI Exceptional Items -                                 -                                   

VII Profit  / (Loss) before Tax (V-VI) 2,075                              3,465                                

VIII Tax Expenses : 27

Current Tax 1,065                              540                                  

Mat Credit Entitlement -                                 1,468                                

Deferred Tax  Liability (Assets) (486)                               -2                                     

Income Tax for Earlier Years (Net) (202)                               -                                   

Income Tax for Earlier Years (Net)

Total tax expense 377                                 2,006                                

IX Profit /(Loss) for the period from continuing operations (5-6)
1,698                              1,459                                

IX Profit/(loss) for the year 1,698                              1,459                                

X Other Comprehensive income- Defined Benefit Scheme 12                                   -                                   

XI Total Comprehensive Income (IX+X) 1,710                              1,459                                

Earnings per equity share: 28

Basic 0.36                                0.30                                 

Diluted 0.36                                0.30                                 

Summary of Significant Accounting policies

See accompanying notes form an integral part of the financial statement

In terms of our report of even date attached herewith.

For AMK & Associates Sd/- Sd/-

Chartered Accountants Mousumi Sengupta

Firm's Registration No.327817E Managing Director Director

DIN : 07692374 DIN: 07825625

Sd/-

Bhupendra Kumar Bhutia

Partner Sd/- Sd/-

Membership No. 059363 Archana Singh

(CFO)                                         (CS)

Place: Kolkata

Date : - The 29th day of May, 2023

Bidhan Chandra Roy

Mahendra Singh                     

BANGALORE FORT FARMS LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2023

Amount (Rs. '000)



Particulars
For the year ended  31st 

March, 2023

For the year ended  31st 

March, 2022

Cash Flow/from Operating Activities

Net Profit Before Tax 2,075                                 3,465                                

Adjustment for:

Interest Income (2,456)                               (374)                                  

Interest Expenses 3,150                                 3,201                                 

Add: Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts 1,526                                 -                                    

Add: Depreciation & Amortization 1,759                                 1,896                                 

Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 6,054                                 8,188                                

 -  Trade Receivables (9,864)                               39,329                               

  -  Inventories 2,526                                 1,990                                 

  -  Other Loans & Advances 8,124                                 -4,243                               

   - Trade and Other Payable 3,820                                 -42,880                             

Cash Generated from operations before Income Tax 10,660                               2,384                                

Less :- Direct Tax Paid (1,317)                               -163                                  

Net Cash generated from Operating Activities (A) 9,343                                 2,221                                

Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Purchase of Property Plant and Equipments (12,168)                             1,510                                 

Interest Income 2,456                                 374                                    

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities(B) (9,712)                               1,884                                 

Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Short Term borrowing (3,366)                               8,234                                

Long  Term borrowing (2,750)                               278                                    

Dividend Paid -                                    412                                    

Interest Paid (3,150)                               (3,201)                               

Net Cash Used in Financing Activities ( C) (9,266)                               5,723                                 

Net Increase/ (Decrease) in Cash & Cash equivalent (A+B+C) (9,635)                               9,830                                 

Opening Balance of Cash & Cash equivalent 10,885                               1,055                                 

Closing Balance of Cash & Cash equivalent 1,250                                 10,885                               

In terms of our report of even date attached herewith.

For AMK & Associates 

Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.327817E Sd/- Sd/-

Mahendra Singh Mousumi Sengupta

Managing Director Director

Sd/- DIN: 07825625

Bhupendra Kumar Bhutia

Partner

Membership No. 059363

Sd/- Sd/-

Place: Kolkata Bidhan Chandra Roy Archana Singh

Date : - The 29th day of May, 2023 (CFO)                                         (CS)

DIN : 07692374

BANGALORE FORT FARMS LIMITED

 Statement of Cash Flow for the Year ended 31st March, 2023

Amount (Rs.'000)

Note:-                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                       

The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the indirect Method as set out in Ind AS-7 "Statement of Cash Flow"



BANGALORE FORT FARMS LIMITED: 

 

 

Note-1 

 

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes on Accounts as at and for the year 

ended on 31st March, 2023 

 

1. Corporate Information 

 

Bangalore Fort Farms Limited (BFFL) is a public limited company domiciled and 

incorporated in India and its shares are publicly traded on the Bombay Stock 

Exchange (‘BSE’), in India. The registered office of BFFL is 16A Brabourne Road 

Kolkata-700001. The Company is principally engaged in Agro-products in India.  

These financial statements are prepared in Indian rupees. 

 

The financial statements were approved and adopted by board of directors of the 

Company in their meeting held on 29th May, 2023.  

 

 

2. Basis of preparation 

 

Compliance with Ind AS 

 

These financial statements are prepared and presented in accordance with the 

Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified under the Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended from time to time as notified 

under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, the relevant provisions of the 

Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”), the guidelines issued by the Securities and 

Exchange Board of India (SEBI), as applicable. 

 

 The financial statements are authorized for issue by the Board of Directors of the 

Company at their meeting held on 29th May, 2023. 

 

 

3.   Significant accounting Policies and Key Estimates and Judgements 

 

3.1 Basis of Measurement 

 

These financial statements are prepared on historical cost basis except for certain 

financial Assets and liabilities (including derivatives instruments) measured at fair 

value.    

 

3.2  Use of Estimates 

 

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires 

management to make estimates, judgments and assumption. These estimates, 

judgments and assumptions affect the application of accounting policies and the 

reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure   of contingent assets 

and liabilities at the date of the financial statement and reported amounts of 

revenue and expenses during the period. Application of accounting policies that 

requires critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments 

and the use of assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed. 

Accounting estimate could change from period to period. Actual results could 

differ from those judgments. Appropriate changes in estimates are made as 

management become aware of changes in circumstances surrounding the 

estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial statements in the 



period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in 

the notes to the financial statements. 

 

 

3.3  Significant accounting Judgments, estimate, assumptions 

 

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has 

made the following key estimates, assumptions and judgments, which have 

significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statement: 

 

(a) Income taxes 

 

Management judgment is required for the calculation of provision for income 

taxes and deferred tax assets and liabilities. The factors used in estimates may 

differ from actual outcome which could lead to significant adjustment to the 

amounts reported in the standalone financial statements. 

 

(b) Contingencies 

Management judgment is required for estimating the possible outflow of 

resources, if any, in respect of contingencies/claim/litigations against the 

Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with 

accuracy. 

 

(c) Defined Benefit Plans 

 

The cost of the employment benefits such as gratuity and leave obligation are 

determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making 

various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. 

These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and 

mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-

term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these 

assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date. 

The parameter most subject to change is the discount rate. In determining the 

appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers 

the interest rates of government bonds. 

 

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for the specific 

countries. Those mortality tables tend to change only at interval in response to 

demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based 

on expected future inflation rates. 

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 34. 

 

(d) Insurance Claims 

 

 Insurance and other claims raised by the Company are accounted for when 

received owing to uncertainties involved. 

 

3.4 Current versus non-current classification 

 

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on 

current/non-current classification.  

 

(A) An asset treated as current when it is: 

 

(i) Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal 

operating cycle. 

(ii) Held primarily for the purpose of trading. 

(iii) Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or 



(iv) Cash or Cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to 

settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period 

All other assets are classified as non-current. 

 

(B) A liability is current when: 

 

(i) It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle 

(ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading 

(iii) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or  

(iv) There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at 

least twelve months after the reporting period  

All other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

 

3.5 Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities  

The company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial 

recognition. After initial recognition, no classification is made for financial assets 

which are equity instruments and financial liabilities. For financials assets which 

are debt instruments; a reclassification is made only if there is a change in the 

business model for managing those assets. Changes to the business model are 

expected to be infrequent. The company’s senior management determines change 

in the business model as a result of external or internal changes which are 

significant to the company’s operations. Such changes are evident to the external 

parties. A change in the business model occurs when the company either begins or 

ceases to perform an activity that is significant to its operations. If the company 

reclassifies financial assets, it applies the reclassification prospectively from the 

reclassification date which is the first day of the immediately next reporting 

period. Following the changes in business model, the company does not restate 

any previously recognized gains, losses (including impairment gains or losses) or 

interest.  

 

3.6 Significant Accounting Policies 

 

a. Revenue Recognition 

 

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits 

will flow to the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of 

when the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the 

consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined 

terms of payment and excluding taxes or duties collected on behalf of the 

government. 

 

i. The Company recognizes revenue from contracts with customers based on a five 

step model as set out in Ind AS 115: 

 

Sept 1: Identify contract(s) with a customer: A contract is defined as an 

agreement between two or more parties that creates enforceable rights and 

obligations and sets out the criteria for every contract that must be met. 

 

Sept 2: Identify performance obligations in the contract:  A performance 
obligation is a promise in a contract with a customer to transfer a good or service 

to the customer. 

 

Sept 3:  Determine the transaction price: The transaction price is the amount of 

consideration to which the company expects to be entitled in exchange for 

transferring promised goods or services to a customer, excluding amounts 

collected on behalf of third parties. 

 



Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the 

contract: For a contract that has more than one performance obligation, the 

Company allocates the transaction price to each performance obligation in an 

amount that depicts the amount of consideration to which the Company expects 

to be entitled in exchange for satisfying each performance obligation. 

 

Step 5: Recognize revenue when (or as) the Company satisfies a performance 

obligation. 

  

 

ii. Interest Income  

 

Interest Income from a financial asset is recognized when it is probable that the 

economic benefits will flow to the Company and the amount of income can be 

measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference to the 

principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the 

rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected 

life of the financial asset to the asset's net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

 

 

iii. Dividend 

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive dividend is established. 

 

 

b. Government grants 

Government Grants are recognized where there is reasonable assurance that the 

grant will be received and all attached condition will be complied with. 

When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognized as income on a 

systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended 

to compensate, are expensed. 

Grants related to specific fixed assets are deducted from the gross value of the 

concerned assets in arriving at their book values.  

 

c. Taxation 

 

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and deferred tax (including 

MAT). 

 

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount to be 

recovered from or paid to taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to 

compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted at the 

reporting date.   

 

Income tax expense is recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss, except to 

the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity or other 

comprehensive income, in such cases the tax is also recognized directly in equity 

or in other comprehensive income. 

Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets 

and liabilities in the Balance sheet and the tax bases used in the computation of 

taxable profit. 

 

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary 

differences, and deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible 

temporary differences, Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is 

probable that future taxable profits will be available against which those 

deductible temporary differences and the carry forward of unused tax credits and 

unused tax losses can be utilized. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities 

are off set, and presented as net.  



 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet 

date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable 

profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. 

 

Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) is applicable to the Company. Credit of MAT is 

recognized as an asset only when and to the extent there is convincing evidence 

that the Company will pay normal income tax during the specified period, i.e., the 

period for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. In the year in which 

the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognized as an asset, the said asset is 

created by way of a credit to the profit and loss account and shown as MAT credit 

entitlement. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and 

writes down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent there is 

no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Company will pay normal 

income tax during the specified period. 

 

d. Property, Plant and Equipment 

 

The Company considers the previous GAAP carrying value for all its Property, 

Plant and Equipment as deemed cost at the transition date, viz. 1st April 2016 

 

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation 

and accumulated impairment of loss, if any.   

 

Cost of any item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price 

including import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade 

discounts and rebates, any directly attributable cost of bringing the item to its 

working condition.  

 

Depreciation is provided on the straight line method by depreciating carrying 

amount of Property, Plant and Equipment over remaining useful life of the assets.  

Depreciation methods, useful life and residual values are reviewed at each 

financial year end. 

 

The useful life and residual value as per such review is normally in accordance 

with schedule II of the Companies Act 2013. 

 

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant 

and equipment is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and 

the carrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Statement of Profit and 

Loss on the date of disposal or retirement. 

 

e. Intangible Assets 

 

Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and 

impairment. Intangible assets are amortized over their respective individual 

estimated useful life on a straight line method.    

 

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured 

as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of 

the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is 

derecognized. 

 

f. Impairment of Assets 

 

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication 

that a Property, plant and equipment may have been impaired. If any such 



indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the Property, 

plant and equipment. If such recoverable amount of the Property, plant and 

equipment or the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the 

Property, plant and equipment belongs is less than its carrying amount, the 

carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as 

an impairment loss and is recognized in the profit and loss. If at the balance 

sheet date there is an indication that if a previously assessed impairment loss no 

longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the Asset is reflected at 

the recoverable amount subject to a maximum of depreciated historical cost. 

 

g. Inventories 

 

Inventories are stated at lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost is 

calculated on First in First Out (FIFO) method except work in progress which is 

valued at raw material cost plus conversion costs depending upon the stage of 

completion. Cost comprises expenditure incurred in the normal course of business 

in bringing such inventories to its present location and condition and includes, 

where applicable, appropriate overheads based on normal level of activity.  Net 

realisable value is the estimated selling price less estimated costs for completion 

and sale. 

 

h. Borrowing Costs 

Interest and other costs connected with the borrowing for the acquisition / 

construction of qualifying fixed assets are capitalized up to the date that when 

such asset are ready for their intended use and other borrowing cost are charged 

to statement of profit & loss. Borrowing cost includes exchange difference to the 

extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing cost.  

 

i. Lease 

 

The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the 

requirements of IND AS 116. Identification of a lease requires significant 

judgment. The Company uses significant judgment in assessing the lease term 

(including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. 

 

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, 

together with both periods covered by an option to extend the lease if the 

Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an 

option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise 

that option. In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise 

an option to extend a lease, or not to exercise an option to terminate a lease, it 

considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive 

for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the 

option to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a 

change in the non-cancellable period of a lease. 

  

The discount rate is generally based on the incremental borrowing rate specific to 

the lease being evaluated or for a portfolio of leases with similar characteristics. 

 

Company as a lessee 

 

The Company accounts for each lease component within the contract as a lease 

separately from non-lease components of the contract and allocates the 

consideration in the contract to each lease component based on the relative 

stand-alone price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of 

the non-lease components. 



The Company recognizes right-of-use asset representing its right to use the 

underlying asset for the lease term at the lease commencement date. The cost of 

the right-of-use asset measured at inception shall comprise of the amount of the 

initial measurement of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at 

or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received, plus any 

initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee 

in dismantling and removing the underlying asset or restoring the underlying 

asset or site on which it is located. The right-of-use assets is subsequently 

measured at cost less any accumulated depreciation, accumulated impairment 

losses, if any and adjusted for any re-measurement of the lease liability. The 

right-of-use assets are depreciated using the straight-line method from the 

commencement date over the shorter of lease term or useful life of right-of-use 

asset. The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the 

same basis as those of property, plant and equipment. Right-of-use assets are 

tested for impairment whenever there is any indication that their carrying 

amounts may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognized in the 

statement of Profit and loss. 

 

The Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease 

payments that are not paid at the commencement date of the lease. The lease 

payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate 

can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the 

Company uses incremental borrowing rate. For leases with reasonably similar 

characteristics, the Company, on a lease-by-lease basis, may adopt either the 

incremental borrowing rate specific the lease or the incremental borrowing rate 

for the portfolio as a whole. The lease payments shall include fixed payments, 

variable lease payments, residual value guarantees, exercise price of a purchase 

option where the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option and 

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the 

lease exercising an option to terminate the lease. The lease liability is 

subsequently re-measured by increasing the carrying amount to reflect interest 

on the lease liability, reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease payments 

made and re-measuring the carrying amount to reflect any re-assessment or 

lease modifications or to reflect revised in-substance fixed lease payments. The 

Company recognizes the amount of the re-measurement of lease liability due to 

modification as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset and statement of profit 

and loss depending upon the nature of modification. Where the carrying amount 

of the right-of-use asset is reduced to zero and there is a further reduction in the 

measurement of the lease liability, the Company recognizes any remaining 

amount of the re-measurement in statement of profit and loss. 

 

Company as a Lessor 

 

At the inception of the lease the Company classifies each of its leases as either an 

operating lease or a finance lease. The Company recognizes lease payments 

received under operating leases as income on a straight-line basis over the lease 

term. In case of a finance lease, finance income is recognized over the lease term 

based on a pattern reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net 

investment in the lease. When the Company is an intermediate lessor it accounts 

for its interests in the head lease and the sub-lease separately. It assesses the 

lease classification of a sub-lease with reference to the right-of-use asset arising 

from the head lease, not with reference to the underlying asset. If a head lease is 

a short term lease to which the Company applies the exemption described above, 

then it classifies the sub-lease as an operating lease. 

  

The Company has elected not to apply the requirements of Ind AS 116 Leases to 

short-term leases of all assets that have a lease term of 12 months or less and 

leases for which the underlying assets is of low value. The lease payments 



associated with these leases are recognized as an expense on a straight-line basis 

over the lease term. 

 

j. Foreign Currencies Translations  

 

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in reporting currency by 

the Company at spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for 

recognition. 

 

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at 

the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting date. Exchange 

differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognized 

in statement of profit and loss. 

 

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign 

currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial 

transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency 

are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value is 

determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of nonmonetary items 

measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on 

the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose 

fair value gain or loss is recognized in OCI or statement profit or loss are also 

recognized in OCI or statement profit and loss, respectively). 

 

k. Provision and Contingencies 

 

A provision is recognised it as a result of past event the company has a present 

legal or constructive obligation that is reasonably estimated and it is probable 

that an outflow of economic benefit will be required to settle the obligation. 

Provisions are determined by discounting the expected cash flow at a pre-tax rate 

that reflects current market assessments of the time value of the money and the 

risk specific to the liabilities. 

 

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose 

existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more 

uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present 

obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of 

resources will be required to settle the obligation. The Company does not 

recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial 

statements. if material, are disclosed by way of notes to the accounts.  

 

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements, as they are 

dependent on the outcome of legal or other processes. 

 

l. Employee Benefits : Expenses and liabilities in respect of employee benefit are 

recorded in accordance with Indian Accounting Standard (IND AS 19 employees 

benefit) 

(i) Short Term Employees Benefit 

Short Term Employee Benefits (i.e. benefits falling due within one year 

after the end of the period in which employees render the related service) 

are recognized as expenses in the period in which employee services are 

rendered as per the Company’s scheme based on expected obligations on 

undiscounted basis. 

 

(ii) Post-Employment Benefit Plans 

Under Defined Contribution Plan, the contribution is payable in keeping 

with the related schemes are recognized as expenses for the year. 

 



Under Defined Benefit Plan, the present value of the obligations is 

determined based on actuarial valuations using the Projected Unit Credit 

Method, on the basis of actuarial valuations carried out by actuary at each 

Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gain /loss, if any, arising from experience 

adjustments and change in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited 

to Other Comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.  

 

(iii) Other Long-Term Employee Benefits 

 

Leave encashment/compensated absence is determined by valuations 

using the Projected Unit Credit Method, on the basis of actuarial valuations 

carried out by actuary at each Balance Sheet date. Actuarial gain /loss, if 

any, arising from experience adjustments and change in actuarial 

assumptions are charged or credited to Other Comprehensive income in 

the period in which they arise.  

 

m. Cash and Cash Equivalents 

 

Cash and Cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on 

hand and short term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less, 

which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. 

 

For the purpose of statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of 

cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits, as defined above, net of 

outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of Company’s 

Cash Management. 

 

n. Dividend  

 

Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognised as a liability in the 

period in which the dividend is approved by the shareholders. Dividend payable 

and corresponding tax on dividend distribution is recognised directly in equity. 

 

o. Earnings Per Share 

 

Basic Earnings per equity shares are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss 

before OCI for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted 

average number of equity share outstanding during the year. 

 

For calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss before OCI for the 

period attributable to equity shareholders and the weighted average number of 

share outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effect of all diluted 

potential equity shares. 

 

 

p. Financial Instruments 

 

(a) Financial Assets 

 

Initial Recognition and Measurement 

 

All financial Assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in case of financial 

assets not recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction cost that are 

attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.  

 

 

 

 



Subsequent measurement 

 

(i) Financial Assets carried at amortised Cost- A Financial Assets is 

subsequently measured at amortised cost, using effective interest rate (EIR) 

method, if it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold the 

asset in order to collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of 

the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 

payments of principal and interest term on the principal amount 

outstanding. 

 

 

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium 

on Acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR 

amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of profit or loss. 

The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the profit or loss. This 

category generally applies to trade receivables, cash and bank balances, 

loans and other financial assets of the company. 

 

 

(ii) Financial Assets at fair value through other comprehensive income- 

A financial asset is subsequently measured at fair value through other 

comprehensive income if it is held within a business model whose objective 

is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial 

assets and the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on a 

specified date to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and 

interest on the principal amount outstanding. The Company has made an 

irrevocable election for its investment which are classified as equity 

instruments to present the subsequent changes in fair value in other 

Comprehensive income based on its business model., Further in case where 

the company has made an irrecoverable election based on its business 

model for its investments, which are classified as equity instrument the 

subsequent changes in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive 

income.  

 

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then 

all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are 

recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to 

statement of profit and loss, even on sale of investment. However, the 

Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. 

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair 

value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 

 

(iii) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - A financial asset 

which is not classified in any of the above categories are subsequently fair 

valued through profit or loss. 

 

 

(b) Financial Liabilities 

 

Initial recognition and Measurement 

Financial Liabilities are recognised at fair value on initial recognition and in case 

of loan and borrowing or payables net of directly attributable transaction costs.  
 

Subsequent Measurement 

Financial Liabilities are subsequently carried at amortized cost using effective 

interest rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the 

liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. 



Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on 

acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR 

amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. 

 

For trade and other payables maturing within one year from the Balance sheet 

date, the carrying amounts approximate fair value due to the short maturity of 

these instruments. 

 

(c) De-recognition of financial instrument 

The company de-recognises the financial assets when contractual right to cash 

flow from financial assets expire or it transfer the financial assets and transfer 

qualities for de-recognition under IND AS 109. A financial liability or a part of a 

financial liability is de-recognised from the company’s Balance Sheet when 

obligation specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expires.  

 

(d) Offsetting of Financial Instruments 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported 

in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the 

recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise 

the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously. 

 

q. Fair value financial instruments 

The company measure financial instrument at fair value at each balance sheet 

date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 

transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the 

measurement date.  

 

In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the company use various 

method and assumption that are based on market conditions and risks existing at 

each reporting date. The methods used to determine the fair value includes 

discounted cash flow analysis, available quoted market price and dealer quotes 

and valuation report etc. The method of assessing fair value results in general 

approximation of value and such value may never actually be realised. 

 

Fair Values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on 

the inputs used in the valuation techniques as follows: 

 

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or 

liabilities 

Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable 

for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived 

from prices). 

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market 

data (unobservable inputs). 

 

When measuring the fair value of an asset or liability, the company uses 

observable market data as far   as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair 

value of an asset or a liability fall into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, 

then the fair value measurement is categorized in its entirety in the same level of 

the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is significant to the entire 

measurement. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



4. Changes in Accounting Standard and recent accounting pronouncements 
(New Accounting Standards issued but not effective): 

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standard or amendments to the 

existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued 

from time to time. On March 23, 2022, MCA amended the Companies (Indian 

Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2022, applicable from April 1st, 2022, as 

below: 

 Ind AS 103 – Reference to Conceptual Framework 

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the 

acquisition method, the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must 

meet the definitions of assets and liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for 

Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting Standards (Conceptual Framework) 

issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at the acquisition date. 

These changes do not significantly change the requirements of Ind AS 103. The 

Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its 

financial statements. 

Ind AS 16 – Proceeds before intended use 

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of 

property, plant and equipment amounts received from selling items produced while 

the company is preparing the asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will 

recognise such sales proceeds and related cost in profit or loss. The Company does 

not expect the amendments to have any impact in its recognition of its property, 

plant and equipment in its financial statements. 

Ind AS 37 – Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract 

The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a contract comprises the 

‘costs that relate directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract 

can either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct 

labour, materials) or an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling 

contracts. The amendment is essentially a clarification and the Company does not 

expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements. 

Ind AS 109 – Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021) 

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 

percent’ test of Ind AS 109 in assessing whether to derecognise a financial liability. 

The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its 

financial statements. 

Ind AS 106 – Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021) 

The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold 

improvements by the lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion regarding 

the treatment of lease incentives that might arise because of how lease incentives 

were described in that illustration. The Company does not expect the amendment 
to have any significant impact in its financial statements. 



Bangalore Fort Farms Limited

A
Equity Share Capital

 

As at 31st March, 2023

Balance as at 01.04.2022 Changes in equity 

share capital due to 

prior period error

Restated balance at 

the beginning of the 

current reporting 

period

Changes in equity share 

capital during the 

current year

Balance as at 31.03.23

47,994                               -                               47,994                        -                                  47,994                         

As at 31st March, 2022

Balance as at 01.04.2021 Changes in equity 

share capital due to 

prior period error

Restated balance at 

the beginning of the 

previous reporting 

period

Changes in equity share 

capital during the 

previous year

Balance as at 

31.03.2022

47,994                               -                               47,994                        -                                  47,994                         

B Other Equity

As at 31st March, 2023

Total

Capital Redemption 

Reserve

Securities Premium 

Reserve
Retained Earnings

130                                 5,090                           19,613                    24,833                        

-                                  -                               -                          -                              

130                                 5,090                           19,613                    24,833                        

-                                  -                               1,698                      1,698                          

-                                  -                               12                           12                               

130                                 5,090                           21,323                    26,543                        

-                                  -                               -                          -                              

-                                  -                               -                          -                              

-                                  -                               -                          -                              

130                                 5,090                           21,323                    26,543                        

As at 31st March, 2022

Total

Capital Redemption 

Reserve

Securities Premium 

Reserve
Retained Earnings

130                                 5,090                           18,153                    23,373                        

-                                  -                               -                          -                              

130                                 5,090                           18,154                    23,373                        

-                                  -                               1,459                      1,459                          

-                                  -                               -                          -                              

130                                 5,090                           19,613                    24,833                        

-                                  -                               -                          -                              

-                                  -                               -                          -                              

-                                  -                               -                          -                              

130                                 5,090                           19,613                    24,833                        

 Dividends 

 Transfer to retained earnings 

 Any other change 

 Balance as on 31st March, 2022 

Reserve and Surplus

 Balance on 1st April, 2021 

 Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors 

 Restated balance as on 1st April, 2021 

 Total Comprehensive Income for the year 2021-22 

Particulars

 OCI Component of Defined Benefit Obligation 

 Profit for the year 

Amount (Rs.'000)

Amount (Rs.'000)

Amount (Rs.'000)

 Restated balance as on 1st April, 2022 

Particulars Reserve and Surplus

 Balance on 1st April, 2022 

 Changes in accounting policy/prior period errors 

 Profit for the year 

 Dividends 

 Transfer to retained earnings 

 Any other change 

 Balance as on 31st March, 2023 

 OCI Component of Defined Benefit Obligation 

 Total Comprehensive Income for the Current Year 



AS at 

01.04.2022
Additions

Deductions / 

Adjustments

As at 

31.03.2023

As at 

01.04.2022

Depreciation 

for the Year

Deductions / 

Adjustments

As at 

31.03.2023

As at 

31.03.2023
As at 31.03.2022

Flats               8,122                     -                       -                 8,122                     -                       -                       -                    8,122                    8,122 

Land               3,349             12,168                     -               15,517                     -                       -                       -                  15,517                    3,349 

Electrical Installation                  799                     -                       -                    799                   329                     76                   405                     394                       470 

Furniture & Fixture               3,111                     -                       -                 3,111                1,311                   301                1,612                  1,499                    1,800 

Computer & Accessories                  396                     -                       -                    396                   376                     -                     376                       19                         19 

Office Equipment                  505                     -                       -                    505                   437                     43                   480                       25                         68 

Plant & Machinery                  110                     -                       -                    110                     63                       3                     66                       44                         47 

Motor Car             11,050                     -                       -               11,050                3,904                1,312                5,216                  5,834                    7,146 

Mobile Phone                    63                     -                       -                      63                     35                     23                     58                         5                         28 

Total             27,506             12,168                     -               39,674                6,455                1,759                     -                  8,213                31,461                  21,051 

For Previous Year             29,186                    50               1,730             27,506                4,728                1,896                   170                6,625                21,051 

BANGALORE FORT FARMS LIMITED

Note - 2 :- Property , Plant and Equipment Amount (Rs '000)

ASSETS

GROSS BLOCK DEPRECIATION NET BLOCK



3 Deferred Tax Assets / Liabilities As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

Section 43B items 37                                  34                               

C/F Business Loss / Depreciation -                              

Others 397                                -                              

Differene in WDV of PPE as per Companies Act,2013 and Income 108                                22                               

Total DTA 542                                56                               

Defered Tax Liabilities

Differene in WDV of PPE as per Companies Act,2013 and Income 

Total DTL

Total 542                                56                               

4 Other non-current assets As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

Unsecured

Capital Advance 5,323                          

Security Deposit with Govt Department 2                                    2                                 

Total 2                                    5,325                          

5 Inventories As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

Trade Goods 31,637                                                   34,164 

                                -   

Total 31,637                                                   34,164 

6 Trade Receivable As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

Trade Receivables considered good-unsecured 43,410                                                   33,546 

Trade Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk 1,526                                                       1,526 

Sub Total 44,936                           35,072                        

Less: Allowances for Doubtful Debts -1,526                           

Total 43,410                           35,072                        

Trade Receivables ageing schedule:

Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment 

    Unsecured-Considered Good

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables –considered good

Less than 6 months                                43,410                              33,493 

6 months - 1 year                                        -                                        -   

1-2 years                                        -                                        -   

2-3 years                                        -                                        -   

More than 3 years                                        -                                        -   

Total                                43,410 33,493                        (ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables –

which have significant increase in credit risk

Less than 6 months                                        -                                        -   

6 months - 1 year                                        -                                        -   

1-2 years                                        -                                        -   

2-3 years                                        -   53.39                          

More than 3 years                                        -                                        -   

Total -                                53                               (ii) Disputed Trade Receivables –

which have significant increase in credit risk

Less than 6 months                                        -   -                              

6 months - 1 year                                        -   -                              

1-2 years                                  1,526 1,526                          

2-3 years                                        -   -                              

More than 3 years                                        -   -                              

Total                                  1,526 1,526                          

BANGALORE FORT FARMS LIMITED
Notes are forming an integral part of the financial statement

Amount (Rs.'000)



7 Cash & Cash Equivalents As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

Cash  in hand 359                                65                               

Bank Balances 891                                10,820                        

Total 1,250                             10,885                        

8 Bank Balance other than cash & cash equivalent As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

Unpaid Dividend Account 73                                  73                               

Total 73                                  73                               

 Amount ( Rs.)  Amount ( Rs.) 

9 Others Financial Assets As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

Security Deposit 184                                                             243 

Total 184                                                             243 

10
 Loans 

As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

Unsecured

Inter-Corporate Deposit 2,500                             3,074                          

Total 2,500                             3,074                          

11 Other current Assets As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

Advances to suppliers, Service providers etc 1,811                             148                             

Prepaid Expenses 285                                253                             

Other Receivable 23,097                           26,960                        

Total 25,193                           27,361                        

12 Equity Share Capital

Authorised

Equity Share of Rs. 10/- par value

50,00,000 (50,00,000) Equity Share                            50,000                         50,000.00 

Issued, Subscribed and Paid-up Capital

Equity Share of Rs. 10/- par value

47,99,400 (47,99,400) Equity Share of Rs. 10/- each fully paid-up                            47,994                              47,994 

                           47,994                              47,994 

Notes:

As at 31st March 2022As at 31st March 2023

BANGALORE FORT FARMS LIMITED

Amount (Rs.'000)

1. The Company has only one class of shares referred to as equity shares having a par value of  Rs.10/-. Each 

holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share.

2. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the 

remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts.However,no such preferential 

amounts exist currently.The distribution will be in proportion to the number of shares held by the shareholders.

Notes are forming an integral part of the financial statement



3. Details of  Share holders holding more than 5% of total shares as on:

No. of Shares
% to Total                                 

Shares
No. of Shares % to Total Shares

Revati Holding Private Limited 15,95,693                                                       33.25 15,95,693                           33.25 

Jagsakti Merchandise Private Limited 8,00,000                                                         16.56 8,00,000                             16.67 

ROS Insurance Advisors Private Limited 4,44,400                                                           9.26 4,44,400                               9.26 

Srabanti Singharoy 2,50,300                                                           5.22 2,50,300                               5.22 

4. The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding as at 31st March, 2023 is as below:

No. of Shares  Amount (Rs.) No. of Shares  Amount (Rs.) 

Number of Shares at the begnning 47,99,400                         4,79,94,000                47,99,400        4,79,94,000      

Addition during the Year -                                     -                              -                    -                     

Number of Shares at the closing 47,99,400                         4,79,94,000                47,99,400        4,79,94,000      

5. Shares held by promoters at the end of the year 31st March, 2023

Sl. No.          Promoter name   Number of Shares % of total shares

% Change 

during the 

year

1. Revati Holding Private Limited                                                                                                             15,95,693.00                                33.25                       -   

Total                      15,95,693.00                                33.25                       -   

13 Other Equity As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

Capital Redeemption Reserve 130                               130                             

Security Premium 5,090                            5,090                          

Surplus -                                -                              

As per Last Year balance 19,613                          18,154                        

Adjustment related to MAT Credit Entitlement -                                -                              

Profit for the year 16,98,030                     1,459                          

Add/(less): OCI- difined benefit scheme 12                                 -                              

Total Surplus 17,17,655                                             19,613 

Total Other Equity 17,22,875                     24,833                        

14 Borrowings As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

Secured- From Bank 6,543                                                       9,292 

Total                              6,543 9,292                          

31st March, 2022

Note: Repayment Schedule -Loan taken from Yes Bank against hypothecation of motor 

vehicles and amount is repayable within 60 EMIs  of Rs. 134142/- from Dec 2018. 

Amount (Rs.'000)

31st March, 2023
Particulars

31st March, 2022
     Name of Shareholder

Notes are forming an integral part of the financial statement

BANGALORE FORT FARMS LIMITED

31st March, 2023

Note: Repayment Schedule -Loan taken from ICICI Bank against hypothecation of motor 

vehicles and amount is repayable within 60 EMIs  of Rs. 41336/- from Nov 2020. 

"Ind -GECLS- Covid-19" Loan taken from Bank  Rs.2875000/- repayment period 36 months 

payable from July,2021

"Ind -GECLS- Covid-19" Loan taken from Bank  Rs.2525000/- on 31.03.2022- repayment 

period 36 months payable from April,2024



15 Provisions As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

Provisions for Gratuity 138                                128                             

-                              

Total 138                                128                             

16 Borrowing As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

Secured Loans

From Bank - Cash Credit                            25,839                         29,204 

Total 25,839                                                   29,204 

17 Trade Payable As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

(A) Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small 

enterprises
511                                                                -   

(B) Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 

and small enterprises
23,463                                                   15,677 

Total 23,974                                                   15,677 

Trade Payables ageing schedule 

MSME- other than disputed dues

Less than 1 year                                     511                                      -   

1-2 years                                        -                                        -   

2-3 years                                        -                                        -   

More than 3 years                                        -                                        -   

Total                                     511                                      -   

Other than MSME- other than disputed dues

Less than 1 year                            23,463                         15,677 

1-2 years                                   -                                   -   

2-3 years                                   -                                   -   

More than 3 years                                   -                                   -   

Total                            23,463                         15,677 

18 Other Current Liabilities As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

Statutory Dues 33                                  177                             

Dividend Payable 73                                  73                               

Liabilities for Expenses 976                                5,336                          

Advances from Customers 3,999                             3,999                          

Total 5,082                             9,585                          

19 Provision As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

Provision for Gratuity                                     4 1                                 

Total                                     4 1                                 

Amount (Rs.'000)

Secured against Book dedts, Stocks and equitable mortage of Flat 

at New Alipore, (Kolkata) and Shyamnagar ( North 24 Parganas). 

and Guarantee of directors.                                                                     

BANGALORE FORT FARMS LIMITED
Notes are forming an integral part of the financial statement



20 Revenue from Operation As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

Agro Sales 1,48,752                        1,15,290                     

Agro Sales-Exports 22,005                           62,500                        

Jute Sales 73,876                           45,784                        

Total 2,44,633                        2,23,574                     

21 Other Income As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

Duty Draw back                                   46 71                               

Interest others                              2,456 374                             

Rent Received                                   -   3                                 

Miscellaneous Receipts                                   -   0                                 

Net Gain on Foreign Currency Transaction                                 846 347                             

MEIS / RODTEP -Scrip License                              1,055 2,658                          

Liability No Longer Required -Written Off                                   -   413                             

Discount Received                                 541 -                              

Total 4,944                             3,866                          

22 Purchase of Stock-In-Trade As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

Purchase of Stock-In-Trade 2,25,455                        1,93,404                     

-                              

Total 2,25,455                        1,93,404                     

23 Changes in inventories of Stock-in-Trade As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

Opening Stock 34,164                           36,154                        

Less: Closing Stock 31,637                           34,164                        

Total 2,526                             1,990                          

24 Employees Benefit Expenses As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

Salaries, Wages and Bonus 1,152                             1,240                          

Provision for Gratuity 25                                  -                              

Total                              1,177 1,240                          

25 Finance Cost As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

Interest Paid

-To Bank 3,150                             2,651                          

-To Others -                                137                             

Other Borrowing Cost 126                                413                             

Total                              3,276 3,201                          

BANGALORE FORT FARMS LIMITED
Notes are forming an integral part of the financial statement

Amount (Rs.'000)



26 Other expenses As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

Consumption of Stores & Spare Parts 76                                  67                               

Power & Fuel 183                                242                             

Rent 1,130                             962                             

Rates & Taxes 7                                    7                                 

Other Repairs 36                                  175                             

Vehicle Maintenance 1,616                             992                             

Export Freight,Shipment,Packing and others Charges 5,483                             15,182                        

Professional Fees 159                                144                             

Auditors Remuneration 169                                165                             

Travelling and Conveyance 355                                264                             

Interest & Late fees Paid 4                                    18                               

Rebate & Discount 60                                  301                             

Provision for bad and doubtful debts 1,526                             -                              

Miscellaneous Expenses 2,506                             3,725                          

Total 13,309                           22,244                        

Auditor's Remuneration : As at 31st March 2023 As at 31st March 2022

Audit fees 144                                123                             

Tax Audit fees 25                                  25                               

Other fees -                                18                               

Total 169                                166                             

Amount (Rs.'000)

Notes are forming an integral part of the financial statement

BANGALORE FORT FARMS LIMITED



NOTES ON ACCOUNTS 

 

29. Current Tax 

  

    

The components of income tax expense for the years ended 

31 March 2023 and 2022 are:   

             (Rs.’000) 

 

Year Ended 

31st March, 

2023 

Year Ended 

31st March, 

2022 

Current Tax 1,065 540 

MAT Credit Entitlement 0 1,468 

Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years -202 0 

Deferred Tax -486 -2 

Total Tax Charge 377 2006 

Current Tax 863 2008 

Deferred Tax -486 -2 

   

   

Note 29.1 : Reconciliation of the Total Tax Charge   

The tax charge shown in the statement of profit and loss differs from the tax charge that would 

apply if all profits had been charged at India corporate tax rate. A reconciliation between the tax 

expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for the years ended 31 

March 2023 and 2022 is, as follows: 

 

 

 

  
            

(Rs.’000) 

 

Year Ended 

31st March, 

2023 

Year Ended 

31st March, 

2022 

Accounting profit before tax 2,075 3,465 

Applicable tax rate 26.00% 26.00% 

Computed tax expense 540 901 

Tax effect of:   

Exempted Income 0 0 

Mat Credit Entitlement 0 -1,468 

Effects of Expenses Incurred in Current Year but allowable 

in Next Years 
25.18 0 

Others 202 2,575 

Tax expenses recognized in the statement of profit and loss 863 2,008 

Effective tax rate 41.59% 57.98% 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

   



 

 

 

 

 

Note 29.2 : Deferred Tax 

 

 

 

 

 

         (Rs.’000) 

  

 
As at 31st 

 March, 2023 

As at 31st  

March, 2022 

Deferred tax asset/ liability (net)   

The movement on the deferred tax account is as follows:   

At the start of the year DTA / (DTL) (net) 56       1,522    

Credit / (charge) to the statement of profit and loss  486      2 

MAT Credit Entitlement 0          1,468    

At the end of year DTA / (DTL) (net) 542 56  

 

 

 

30.  Earnings Per Share (EPS): 

      

Particulars 31stMarch, 2023 31stMarch, 2022 

Net profit attributable to equity shareholders 

(Rs.’000) 
1,710 1,459 

Weighted average of equity shares (Nos.’000) 4,799 4,799 

Nominal value of equity shares (In Rs.) 10 10 

Basic/Diluted EPS (in rupees) 0.36 0.30 

 

 

31. Contingent Liabilities and Commitments (to the extent not provided for)- 

 

i. Contingent Liabilities:  

    

1. Claims   against the Company not acknowledged as debts  

(Net of Deposit) – Rs. Nil (PY Rs. Nil) 

   

2. Guarantees– Rs. Nil (PY Rs. Nil) 

 

ii. Commitment- – Rs. Nil (PY Rs. Nil) 

 

32. The provision of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, is not applicable to the 

Company. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

33. Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprise as per MSMED Act, 2006 as per the 

information available with the Company: 

                                                                                      (Rs.’000) 

Sl.

No 
Particulars 

31st March, 

2023 
31st March, 

2022 

(a) (i) Principal amount remaining unpaid at the end 

of the accounting year 

(ii) Interest due thereon  

511 

Nil 

Nil 

Nil 

(b) Interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of 

MSMED Act, 2006 along with the amount of the 

payment made to the suppliers beyond the 

appointed date 

Nil Nil 

(c) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in 

making the payments (which have been paid but 

beyond the due date during the year) but without 

adding interest specified under this Act 

Nil Nil 

(d) The amount of interest accrued and remaining 

unpaid at the end of the financial year 

Nil Nil 

(e) The amount of further interest remaining due and 

payable in succeeding years, until such interest is 

actually paid 

Nil Nil 

 

34. Employee Defined Benefits: 

 

Defined Benefit Plans as per actuarial valuation on 31st March, 2023 and recognised in the     

financial statements in respect of Employee Benefit Schemes. 

      

I. Reconciliation of Defined Benefit Obligations (DBO) during the year ended 31st 

March, 2023 

         

Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022 
As at 1 April 2022 117 82 

Current service cost 29 33 

Interest cost 8 6 

Past Service Cost Nil Nil 

Actuarial (Gains)/Losses (12) (4) 

Benefits paid Nil Nil 

Present value of DBO at the end of period 142 117 

 

 

II. Reconciliation of Fair Value of plan assets during the year ended 31st March, 2023 

 

Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022 
Plan assets at the beginning of period Nil Nil 

Expected return on plan assets Nil Nil 

Actuarial Gains/(Losses) Nil Nil 

Company contribution Nil Nil 



Benefits paid Nil Nil 

Plan assets at the end of period Nil Nil 

 

 

III. Reconciliation of fair value of assets and obligation as at 31st March, 2023 

       (Rs.’000) 

Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022 
Present value of Defined Benefit Obligation 142 117 

Fair value on plan assets Nil Nil 

Status [Surplus/(Deficit)] 142 117 

Net asset/(liability) recognized in the Balance Sheet 142 117 

 

 

IV. Expenses recognized during the year 

       (Rs.’000) 

Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

Current service cost 29 34 

Net Interest cost 8 6 

Expected Return on Plan Assets Nil Nil 

Past Service Cost Nil Nil 

Total expenses recognized in the Statement of 

Profit & Loss 

37 40 

 

 

  

 

V. Other Comprehensive Income 

         (Rs.’000) 

Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

Re measurements of the net defined benefit 

liability/(assets) 

Nil Nil 

Actuarial (gain)/loss for the year on PBO (12) (4) 

Actuarial (gain)/loss for the year on Asset Nil Nil 

 

 

VI. Major category of plan assets as a % of the total plan assets as at 31st March 2023 

 

Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

Investment in Government bonds and securities 

and Special Deposit 

Nil Nil 

Investment in Mutual Funds Nil Nil 

Investment in Group Gratuity Plan Nil Nil 

Bank Balance Nil Nil 

Total Nil Nil 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

VII. Actuarial assumptions 

 

Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

Discount rate (%) 7.30% 7.10% 

Expected Rate of Return on Assets N/A N/A 

Rate of escalation in salary (per annum) (%) 6.00% 6.00% 

Mortality table (IALM) 
IALM (2012-14) 

Table 
IALM (2012-14) 

Table 

 

 
 

Sensitivity Analysis: 

 
Discount Rate, Salary Escalation Rate and Withdrawal rate are significant actuarial assumptions. The 

change in the Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation for a change of 100 Basis Points from the 

assumed assumption is given below: 

 

Results of sensitivity analysis 

Under Base Scenario- Defined Benefit Obligation -    

Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022 

Under Base Scenario 142 117 

Salary Escalation (Up by 1%) 148 123 

Salary Escalation (Down by 1%) 138 112 

Withdrawal Rates (Up by 1%) 143 116 

Withdrawal Rates (Down by 1%) 142 119 

Discount Rates (Up by 1%) 138 112 

Discount Rates (Down by 1%) 147 123 

 

 

 

Maturity Profile of Defined Benefit Obligations 

                     

Particulars 31.03.2023 31.03.2022 
Next 12 Months 4 1 

Year 2 0 4 

Year 3 168 4 

Year 4 0 4 

Year 5 0 138 

Year 6 0 0.5 

Year 7 0 0.5 

Year 8 0 0.5 

Year 9 0 0.4 

Year 10 0 0.4 

   

 

 

35. Segment information as per IND AS-108  

Operating segment are components of the Company whose operating results are 

regularly reviewed by the Chief Operating Decision Maker (“CODM”) to make 

decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance and 

for which discrete financial information is available. 



The Company is engaged primarily on the business of “Agro Products” only, taking 

into account the risks and returns, the organization structure and the internal reporting 

systems. All the operations of the Company are in India. All non-current assets of the 

Company are located in India. 

Accordingly, there are no separate reportable segments as per Ind AS 108 – “Operating 

segments”. 
  

 

36. Related Party information as per Ind AS 24.  

Related Party Disclosures:     

Related party disclosures as identified by the management in accordance with the IND AS 24 on 'Related 

Party Disclosure' 

     

Name of the Related Party    

Parties where Control Exist.    

Revati Holdings Pvt. Ltd. Common Control   

Finshore Management Services Ltd. Common Control   

Revati Commercial Limited Common Director   

ROS Insurance Advisors Pvt Ltd. Common Director   

List of Key Managerial Personnel    

Name  Designation  

Mr. Mahendra Singh  Managing Director 

Mr. Aman Jain  Whole-time Director 

Ms. Archana Singh  Company Secretary  

Mr. Bidhan Chandra Roy  CFO (KMP)  

Mr. Mousimi Sengupta Independent Director 

Mr. Naba Kumar Das Independent Director 

                                                                        (Rs.’000) 

Transaction during the year with Related 

Parties. 

 For the Period 

Ended on 31.03.2023  

 For the Period Ended on 

31.03.2022  

ROS Insurance Advisors Pvt Ltd.   

Payment during the year 600 300 

Repayment during the year 600 300 

Mr. Bidhan Chandra Roy   

Salary (01.04.2022 to 31.03.2023) 600 600 

Payment made during the year 550 550 

Ms. Sneha Naredi   

Salary  (From 01.04.2022 to 13.02.2023) 157 180 

Payment made during the year 172 165 

Ms. Archana Singh   

Salary (From 14.02.2023 to 31.03.2023) 28 0 

Payment made during the year 0 0 

 

  

 

 

 

  



 

 

37. Financial Instrument 

 
Financial Instrument by category: 

                     (Rs.’000)  

Particulars 

  

31st March, 2023 
31st March, 2022 

 

Carrying 

Amount Fair Value 

Carrying 

Amount 

Fair Value 

Financial assets/ liabilities at 

fair value through profit or 

loss 

- - - 

- 

     

     

Financial assets designated at 

fair value through other 

Comprehensive Income - -   

Investment - - - - 

     

     

     

     

Financial Assets designated 

at Amortised Cost      

Loans 2,500 2,500 3,074 3,074 

Trade and Other Receivables  43,410 43,410 35,072 35,072 

Cash and Cash Equivalent 1,250 1,250 10,885 10,885 

Bank Balances Other Than 

Cash and Cash Equivalents  73 73 73 73 

Other Financial Assets 184 184 243 243 

Financial Liabilities 

designated at fair value 

through profit or loss - - - - 

     

Financial Liabilities 

designated at amortised cost     

Borrowings 32,382 32,382 38,496 38,496 

Trade and other Payables 23,974 23,974 15,677 15,677 

Other Financial Liabilities - - - - 

 

 

  

                            

 

 

 (Rs.’000) 

Outstanding balance at the end of the year 

with Related parties. 

For the Financial 

Year Ended on 

31.03.2023 

For the Financial Year 

Ended on 31.03.2022 

ROS Insurance Advisors Pvt Ltd. - - 

Mr. Bidhan Chandra Roy- Salary Payable 50 50 

Ms. Sneha Naredi- Salary payable - 15 

Ms. Archana Singh-Salary Payable 28 - 



 

 

 

 

 

Fair Value Hierarchy 

 

Level-1 Quoted Price (unadjusted) is active markets for identical assets or liabilities 

Level-2  Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level-1 that are observable for the 

asset or liability, either directly (i.e as prices) or indirectly (i.e.) derived from prices) 

Level-3  Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level-1 that are based on non-

observable market data.  

 

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value 

on a recurring basis as of March 31, 2023: 

 

           (Rs’000) 

Particulars 
As of 

31stMarch, 

2023 

Fair value measurement at end of the 

reporting period/year using 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

Assets     

Investments in equity instruments  - - - - 

Investments in preference Share - - - - 

Investment in Mutual Fund - - - - 

Derivative financial instruments - - - - 

Liabilities     

Derivative financial instruments  - - - - 

 

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value 

on a recurring basis as of March 31, 2023: 

             (Rs.’000) 

Particulars 

As of 

March 31, 

2023 

Fair value measurement at end of the 

reporting period/year using 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

Assets     

Investments in equity instruments  - - - - 

Investments in preference Share - - - - 

Investment in Mutual Fund - - - - 

Derivative financial instruments  - - - - 

Liabilities     

Derivative financial instruments  - - - - 

 

 

38. Financial risk management objective and policies  

 

The Company’s financial liabilities include Loan and borrowing, security deposits, retention 

money and Trade & other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to finance 



the Company’s operations. The Company’s financial assets include investments, trade & other 

receivables, deposits and cash & cash equivalents.   

The Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of 

financial markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial 

performance. The Company uses derivative financial instruments to hedge certain risk 

exposures. The Company does not acquire or issue derivative financial instruments for trading 

or speculative purposes. 

The Company’s activities expose it to Credit Risk, Liquidity Risk, Market Risk, and Equity 

Price Rise. The Company has a Risk management policy and its management is supported by 

a Risk management committee that advises on risks and the appropriate financial risk 

governance framework for the Company. The Risk management committee provides assurance 

to the Company’s management that the Company’s risk activities are governed by appropriate 

policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in 

accordance with the Company’s policies and risk objectives. The Board of Directors reviews 

and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below. 

A. Credit Risk- A risk that counterparty may not meet its obligations under a financial 

instrument or customer contract, leading to a financial loss is defined as Credit Risk. 

The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating and financial activities. 

Customer credit risk is managed by the respective marketing department subject to the 

Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk 

management. The Company reviews the creditworthiness of these customers on an on-

going basis. The Company estimates the expected credit loss on the basis of past data, 

experience and policy laid down in this respect. The maximum exposure to the credit 

risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of the trade receivables disclosed in Note 

7 (Seven) as the Company does not hold any collateral as security. The Company has 

a practice to provide for doubtful debts as per its approved policy. 

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date on an individual basis. The 

calculation is based on historical data of credit losses. 

The ageing analysis of the receivables (gross of provision) has been considered from 

the date the invoice falls due. 

             (Rs.’000) 

Particulars 

Neither due 

nor 

impaired 

(including 

unbilled) 

Past due 

Total Up to 6 

months 

6 to 12 

months 

Above 12 

months 

      

Trade receivables 

As at 31stMarch, 2023      

Secured  - - - - - 

 

Unsecured     -    43,410 - 1,526 44,936 

Total - 43,410 - 1,526         44,936 
      

As at 31stMarch, 2022      

Secured  - - - -  



B. Liquidity Risk- A risk that the Company may not be able to settle or meet it 

C. s obligations at a reasonable price is defined as liquidity risks. The Company’s treasury 

department is responsible for managing liquidity, funding as well as settlement 

management. In addition, processes and policies related to such risks are overseen by 

senior management. Management monitors the Company’s net liquidity position 

through rolling forecasts on the basis of expected cash flows. 

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and 

flexibility through the use of cash credits, Term loans among others. 

D. Market Risk- A risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument 

may fluctuate because of changes in market prices is defined as Marketing Risk. Such 

changes in the value of financial instruments may result from changes in the foreign 

currency exchange rates, interest rates, credit, liquidity and other market changes.  

 

(i) Foreign Currency Risk- A risk that the fair value or future value of the cash 

flows of a forex exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange 

rates is defined as Foreign Currency Risk. The Company’s exposure to the risk 

of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the Company’s import 

and foreign currency loan/ derivatives operating activities. The Company, as 

per its risk management policy, uses foreign exchange and other derivative 

instruments primarily to hedge foreign exchange exposure. The management 

monitors the foreign exchange fluctuations on a continuous basis. 

Derivative instruments and un-hedged foreign currency exposure: 

The Company does not enter into any derivative instruments for trading or 

speculative purposes. 

(ii) Interest rate risk-The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market 

interest rates relates primarily to long term debt. The Company is not exposed 

to such risk as on 31st March, 2023. 

Maturity profile of financial liabilities 

The table below provides details regarding the remaining contractual maturities of financial 

liabilities at the reporting date based on contractual undiscounted payments.  

                        (Rs.’000) 

 

Unsecured     -    33,493 -          1,579 35,072 

Total  33,493 - 1,579         35,072 

Financial Liabilities 0-1 year 2-5 year 5-10 year Above 10 

years 

As at 31stMarch, 2023     

Borrowings 25,839 6,543 - - 

Trade Payables 23,974 - - - 

Other financial liabilities        - - - - 

Total 49,813 6,543   

     

As at 31stMarch, 2022   - - 

Borrowings 29,204 9,292 - - 

Trade Payables 15,677 - - - 



 

39. Capital management 

 

The Company’s objective when managing capital (defined as net debt and equity) is to 

safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns to 

shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, while protecting and strengthening the 

Balance Sheet through the appropriate balance of debt and equity funding. The Company 

manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in taking into consideration the 

economic conditions and strategic objectives of the Company. 

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital, share 

premium and all other equity reserves. Net debt includes, interest bearing loans and 

borrowings, trade and other payables less cash and short-term deposits. 

In order to achieve this overall objective, the Company’s capital management, amongst other 

things, aims to ensure that it meets financial covenants attached to the interest-bearing loans 

and borrowings that define capital structure requirements. Breaches in meeting the financial 

covenants would permit the bank to immediately call loans and borrowings. There have been 

no breaches of the financial covenants of any interest-bearing loans and borrowing for reported 

periods. 

 

 

40. There are no amounts due and outstanding to be credited to Investor Education 

& Protection Fund as at March 31, 2023 

 

41. Events after the reporting period 

 

There have been no events after the reporting date that require disclosure in financial     

statements. 

 

42. Additional Disclosures: 

 

a. The Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment accordingly 

disclosure as to whether the revaluation is based on the valuation by a registered 

valuer as defined under rule 2 of the Companies (Registered Valuers and Valuation) 

Rules, 2017 is not applicable to the Company. 

 

b. During the year, the Company has not granted any Loans or Advances in the nature 

of loans which are either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or 

period of repayment to promoters, directors and KMPs either severally or jointly 

with any other person 

 

c. No proceedings have been initiated or pending against the company for holding any 

benami property under the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (45 of 

1988) and the rules made thereunder, the company for the financial year 2022-23. 

 

d. The Company has been taken borrowings from banks or financial institutions on 

the basis of security of current assets. The quarterly returns or statements of current 

assets filed by the Company with such banks or financial institutions are generally 

Other financial liabilities        - - - - 

Total 44,881 9,292 - - 

     



in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company of the respective 

quarters. 

 

e. The Company has not been declared as willful defaulter by any bank or financial 

Institution or other lender. 

 

f. The company has any not entered into any transactions with companies which are 

struck off under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of 

Companies Act, 1956 during the financial year ended on 31 03 2023. 

 

g. The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered 

with Registrar of Companies beyond the statutory period. 

 

h. The Company does not have any investment through more than two layers of 

investment companies as per section 2(87)(d) and section 186 of the Companies 

Act 2013. 

 

i. During the year Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds (either 

borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) to any 

other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Intermediaries) with the 

understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Intermediary shall 

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries, the company. 

 

j. During the year Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or 

entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the understanding 

(whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the company shall 

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any 

manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) 

or  

(ii) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 

Beneficiaries. 

 

k. The Company does not have such transaction which are not recorded in the books 

of accounts during the year and also there are not such unrecorded income and 

related assets related to earlier years which have been recorded in the books of 

account during the year. 

 

l. The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency 

during the financial year. 

 

43. Ratio Analysis 

 

Ratios Numerator Denominator 
31-03-2023 

 
31-03-2022 

%  

Variance 

Reason 

for 

 Variance 

Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 1.89 2.01 -5.94%              -    

Debt-Equity Ratio Total Debt Shareholder's Equity 0.44 0.53 -17.28%              -    



Debt Service 

Coverage Ratio 

Earnings 

Available for 

Debt Services 

Debt Service 0.22 0.22 -1.27%              -    

Return on Equity 

Ratio 

Net Profit after 

Tax 

Average Shareholder's 

Equity 
0.02 0.02 13.07%              -    

Inventory turnover 

ratio 
Net Sales Average Inventory 7.44 6.36 16.93%              -    

Trade Receivables 

turnover ratio 
Net Credit Sales 

Average Accounts 

Receivables 
6.23 4.08 52.63% 

Due to 

increase in 

sales 

Trade payables 

turnover ratio 

Net Credit 

Purchase/ Cost 

of Goods Sold 

Average Trade 

Payables 
11.50 5.37 114.15% 

Due to 

increase in 

Purchases 

Net capital turnover 

ratio 
Net Sales 

Average Working 

Capital 
4.66 4.26 9.39%              -    

Net profit ratio Net Profit Net Sales 0.02 0.02 13.07%              -    

Return on Capital 

employed 
EBIT 

Average Capital 

Employed 
0.07 0.09 -21.98%              -    

Return on 

investment 
Profit After Tax 

Average total Assets 

less DTA (Net) 
0.01 0.01 30.64% 

Due to 

increase in 

Profit 

 

44. Previous year figures are regrouped and reclassified to make them comparable with Ind 

AS presentation. 

 

45. The above financial statements have been reviewed by the audit committee and 

subsequently approved by the Board of Directors at its meeting held on 29th May 2023. 

 

As per our report of even date       

      Sd/-           Sd/-  

For AMK & Associates   Mahendra Singh         Mousumi Sengupta 

Chartered Accountants   Managing Director         Director 

(FRN 327817E)    DIN :  07692374         DIN : 07825625 

 

Sd/-                Sd/-            Sd/-    

Bhupendra Kumar Bhutia             Bidhan Chandra Roy         Archana Singh 

Partner            CFO                                     CS             

Membership No. 059363     

      

           

Kolkata       

29th May, 2023            

          

 


